
Town Council Packet 
May 10, 2022 @ 7:00pm 



1 – Agenda 

 

GUIDELINES FOR PUBLIC INPUT 

Public Input is a vital and important portion of every meeting and will be permitted 

throughout the meeting, but according to the following guidelines: 

 

a. Public input is allowed during the Agenda identified Public Input and Public 

Hearing portion of the meeting.   

i. If you would like to address the meeting during the appropriate times, 

please raise your hand and when called upon you will be asked to come 

to the podium.  Announce your name so that your statements can be 

adequately captured in the meeting minutes. 

ii. Please keep your comments to 3-5 minutes as others may want to 

participate throughout the meeting and to insure that the subject does 

not drift. 

b. Throughout the meeting agenda calls for public input will be made, generally 

pertaining to specific action items.  Please follow the same format as above. 

c. At the conclusion of the meeting, if the meeting chair believes additional public 

comment is necessary, the floor will be open. 

 

We hope that this guideline will improve the effectiveness and order of the Town’s 

Public Meetings.  It is the intent of your publicly elected officials to stay open to your 

feelings on a variety of issues. 

 

Thank you, Rangely Mayor 

1



 
 

Town of Rangely                     May 10, 2022 - 7:00pm 

Agenda 
        Rangely Board of Trustees (Town Council) 

ANDY SHAFFER, MAYOR

TREY ROBIE, MAYOR PROTEM 
                         DON DAVIDSON, TRUSTEE 
                         KYLE WREN, TRUSTEE 

                                     TIM WEBBER, TRUSTEE 
       ALISA GRANGER, TRUSTEE 
       TODD THAYN, TRUSTEE

 

 

1. Call to Order  

2. Roll Call     

3. Invocation   

4. Pledge of Allegiance   

5. Minutes of Meeting 

a. Discussion and Action to approve the minutes of April 26, 2022, Town Council Meeting   

6. Petitions and Public Input  

7. Changes to the Agenda  

8. Public Hearings - 7:10pm 

9. Committee/Board Meetings 

10. RBC Commissioner Reports 

11. Council Reports 

12. Supervisor Reports – See Attached 

13. Reports from Officers – Town Manager Update 

14. Old Business 

a. Discussion and action to appoint a representative to Club 20 

15. New Business 

a. Discussion and action to approve the April 2022 Check Register 

b. Discussion and action to appoint a Mayor ProTem 

c. Discussion and action to approve Resolution 2022-03 appointing Marybel Cox as the Town of Rangely 
Clerk and Treasurer 

d. Discussion and action to approve Resolution 2022-04 appointing Heather Cannon as the Town of Rangely 
Municipal Attorney 

e. Discussion and action to approve Resolution 2022-05 appointing Karen Wilczek as the Town of Rangely 
Municipal Court Judge 

2



 

 

 

16. Informational Items 

a. Rangely featured in Main Streets publication “The Main Thing: 

b. Rangely Tread and Colorado Main Street survey 

c. Dinosaur Diamond Meeting May 2022 

d. AGNC Meeting May 25th @ CNCC 9am-1:30pm 

e. Club 20 Information 

f. Rangely District Hospital Health Fair May 14th 7am-11am 

g. AGNC Legislative Summary 

h. Club 20 Weekly Action Report 

17. Board Vacancies 

a. Community Garden Board Vacancies 

18. Scheduled Announcements 

a. Planning and Zoning meeting is scheduled for the June 2022 
b. Community Outreach meeting is scheduled for June 6, 2022, at 6:00 pm.  

c. Rangely District Library Board meeting is scheduled for May 9, 2022, at 5:00 pm  

d. Western Rio Blanco Park & Recreation District Board meeting is scheduled for May 9, 2022, at 7:00 pm 

e. Giant Step Preschool Board meeting is scheduled for May 11, 2022, at 6:00 pm 
f. Rural Fire Protection District Board meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2022, at 7:00 pm 

g. Rangely School District Board meeting has been scheduled for May 17, 2022, at 6:15 pm 

h. Rangely Junior College District Board meeting is scheduled for May 17, 2022, at 12:00 noon 

i. Rio Blanco County Commissioners Board meeting is scheduled for May 17, 2022, at 11:00 am 

j. RDA/RDC Board meeting is scheduled for May 19, 2022, at 7:30 am 

k. Rangely Chamber of Commerce Board meeting is scheduled for May 19, 2022, at 12:00 noon 
l. Rio Blanco Water Conservancy District Board meeting is scheduled for May 25, 2022, at 6:30 pm 

m. Rangely District Hospital board meeting is scheduled for May 26, 2022, at 6:00 pm 
 

19. Adjournment            

3



5 – Minutes 

4



 
 

Town of Rangely                     April 26, 2022 - 7:00pm 

Minutes 
        Rangely Board of Trustees (Town Council) 

ANDY SHAFFER, MAYOR

TREY ROBIE, MAYOR PROTEM 
                         DON DAVIDSON, TRUSTEE 
                         KYLE WREN, TRUSTEE 

                                     TIM WEBBER, TRUSTEE 
       ALISA GRANGER, TRUSTEE 
       TODD THAYN, TRUSTEE

 

 

1. Call to Order – 7:00pm 

2. Swear in New Trustees 

I, (TRUSTEE NAMES) do solemnly, sincerely, and truly declare and affirm that I will support the Constitution of 
the United States and of the State of Colorado, and faithfully perform the duties of the officer of the BOARD 

OF TRUSTEE upon which I am about to enter   

3. Roll Call – Andy Shaffer, Don Davidson, Kyle Wren, Alisa Granger, and Todd Thayn present.  Trey 

Robie and Tim Webber excused absences. 

4. Invocation – Led by Andy Shaffer 

5. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Lisa Piering 

6. Minutes of Meeting 

a. Discussion and Action to approve the minutes of April 12, 2022, Town Council Meeting – Motion made by 
Don Davidson to approve the minutes April 12, 2022, Town Council Meeting, second by Alisa Granger.  

Kyle Wren and Todd Thayn abstain.  Motion passed 

7. Petitions and Public Input  

8. Changes to the Agenda  

9. Public Hearings - 7:10pm 

a. CNCC Update – President Lisa Jones and Vice President of Instruction Keith Peterson – Dr. Jones 
from CNCC addressed concerns about the athletics at CNCC.  Dr. Jones stated that CNCC is not 

cancelling the athletics but are looking at different regions due to budget and trying to save 

CNCC money.  Travel is a substantial part of that cost.  She is asking to move regions or to re-
align the region.  She stated that the Presidents are meeting to help better schedule games to 

help reduce the travel.  Dr. Jones also stated that they are in the process of updating their 
eligibility policy to make athletes more successful.  Dr. Jones reported that the soccer team was 

moved to Rangely and that the Rodeo team moved to Craig.  Rock ‘n Bull will stay in Rangely.  

Keith Peterson with CNCC also reported to the council on the academic side of CNCC.  Keith 
stated that the Aviation program has a new program director and a new coordinator.  They will 

be attending an airshow to represent CNCC.  Keith said that they are working on an EDA grant 

 
 

5



 

 
and are still searching for a Maintenance Program Director.  Keith also discussed the Dental 

Hygiene Program and how they will be offering CNCC’s first bachelor’s degree in 2023 for Dental 

Hygiene.  They hope to grow the program by offering to be hybrid.  Keith also stated that they 
will be offering new Sports Medicine classes and that the Cyber Security Program will be going 

fully hybrid in the Fall.   
10. Committee/Board Meetings – RDA/RDC meeting was cancelled and looking at meeting every other 

month.   

11. RBC Commissioner Reports - None 

12. Council Reports – Andy, Lisa and Jeannie went to Craig to visit with Hickenlooper.  Don Davidson 
stated that he attended the State of the River meeting and received a greater understanding of the 

state of the river.  There will be another presentation on April 28th.   

13. Supervisor Reports – See Attached 

a. Kelli Neiberger – Kelli reported to the council that gas prices are volatile, but we remain stable.  

The Town of Dinosaur is wanting to get natural gas.  DOLA, the Town of Dinosaur, Kelli, and Lisa 

have met, and DOLA is very supportive.  DOLA has granted an Admin grant to the Town of 
Dinosaur.  The Gas Department would oversee the operation, but the Town of Dinosaur would 

own it.  There would be no additional cost to the town.  New meter reading equipment has 

finally been implemented today with it’s first read and went well.  Kelli stated that they continue 
to do meter changes, that they have 58 to get done this year and are about halfway done 

already.  Kelli reported that they have completed their annual valve inspection.  White River 
Villages has an apartment that is getting remodeled.  Kelli also stated that they are working on 

the sprinkler system at the museum. 

14. Reports from Officers – Town Manager Update – Lisa reported to the council that raw water is on 

and operational.  Jeff and crew are filling potholes.  CIRSA said it was ok to repair the water 

treatment plant.  The same contractor will be doing the roof at wastewater.  CDOT has replaced 

pedestrian signs at Birch and the old signs will be moved to South White.  Re-painting of curbs and 
crosswalks will be coming soon.  Jeannie and Lisa attended the Energy Symposium in New Castle, 

and Jocelyn, Jeannie, Lisa and Marybel attended the WCES in Grand Junction 

15. Old Business 

16. New Business 

a. Discussion and action to approve the March 2022 Financial Summary – Motion made Alisa Granger to 
approve the March 2022 Financial Summary, second by Don Davidson.  Motion passed 

b. Discussion and action to approve the Liquor License renewal for Perry Investments DBA Main Street Pub. 
Motion made by Don Davidson to approve the Liquor License renewal for Perry Investments DBA Main 
Street Pub, second by Alisa Granger.  Motion passed 

c. Discussion and action to approve the continued Fiscal oversight of the Dinosaur Welcome Center with the 
Colorado Office of Economic Development in consideration of $70,860.00 coming from the State of 
Colorado – Motion made by Alisa Granger to approve the continued Fiscal oversight of the Dinosaur 
Welcome Center with the Colorado Office of Economic Development in consideration of $70,860.00 
coming from the State of Colorado, second by Kyle Wren.  Motion passed 

d. Discussion and action to appoint a representative to (AGNC) Associated Government of Northwest 
Colorado, meetings are the third Wednesday of each month. – Motion made by Alisa Granger to appoint 
Lisa Piering as the representative to (AGNC) Associated Government of Northwest Colorado, meetings 
are the third Wednesday of each month, second by Don Davidson.  Motion passed 

 
6



 

 

e. Discussion and action to appoint a representative to Club 20- Motion to table to next meeting 

f. Discussion and action to appoint the mayor and two council members to each of the following 
committees, Utilities, Finance/HR, Public Safety. – Motion made by Alisa Granger to appoint the 
following to each of the following committees, Utilities, Finance/HR, Public Safety, second by Todd 
Thayn.  Motion passed 

Utilities: Andy Shaffer, Todd Thayn, and Trey Robie 

Finance/HR: Andy Shaffer, Alisa Granger, Tim Webber 

Public Safety: Andy Shaffer, Don Davidson, Kyle Wren 

g. Discussion and action to appoint two council members to serve on the Rangely School Foundation Board – 
Motion made by Alisa to appoint Andy Shaffer and Don Davidson to serve on the Rangely School 
Foundation Board, second by Kyle Wren.  Motion passed 

h. Discussion and action to appoint one council member to the Western Rio Blanco 911 Board – Motion 
made by Kyle Wren to appoint Todd Thayn to the Western Rio Blanco 911 Board, second by Alisa 
Granger.  Motion passed 

17. Informational Items 

a. AGNC Legislative Summary 

b. Town of Rangely OHV PD Presentation 

18. Board Vacancies 

a. Community Garden Board Vacancies 

19. Scheduled Announcements 

a. Planning and Zoning meeting is scheduled for the June 2022 

b. Community Outreach meeting is scheduled for May 2, 2022, at 6:00 pm.  
c. Giant Step Preschool Board meeting is scheduled for April 13, 2022, at 6:00 pm 

d. Rangely District Library Board meeting is scheduled for April 11, 2022, at 5:00 pm 
e. Western Rio Blanco Park & Recreation District Board meeting is scheduled for April 11, 2022, at 7:00 pm 

f. Rangely Junior College District Board meeting is scheduled for April 19, 2022, at 12:00 noon 
g. Rio Blanco County Commissioners Board meeting is scheduled for April 19, 2022, at 11:00 am 

h. RDA/RDC Board meeting is scheduled for April 21, 2022, at 7:30 am 
i. Rangely Chamber of Commerce Board meeting is scheduled for April 21, 2022, at 12:00 noon 
j. Rural Fire Protection District Board meeting is scheduled for April 18, 2022, at 7:00 pm 
k. Rangely School District Board meeting has been scheduled for April 19, 2022, at 6:15 pm 

l. Rio Blanco Water Conservancy District Board meeting is scheduled April 27, 2022, at 6:30 pm 
m. Rangely District Hospital board meeting is scheduled for April 28, 2022, at 6:00 pm 

 

20. Adjournment – 8:51pm          

 

ATTEST:                                                                                RANGELY TOWN COUNCIL 

 

______________________________                           ________________________________                                                                                                                                  
Marybel Cox, Clerk                                           Andrew Shaffer, Mayor      
 

7



8 – Public Hearings

8



  9 - Committee Meeting
10 - Report from RBC Commissioners
11 - Report from Council
12 - Reports from Supervisors 

9



April 2022 - Supervisor Reports 
 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT – SUBMITTED BY POLICE CHIEF, TIRYNN HAMBLIN__________________________ 

Project status/Current Issues 

Communication Division: 

• 1184 calls for service through the communication center 

• 64 calls for 9-1-1 services 

• 12- 9-1-1 misdials/ hang ups 

Patrol Division: 

• 328 incident calls for various crimes occurring or occurred 

• 51 - cases 74– traffic contacts 203- incidents 

• Responded to 4 alarm(s) 

• 20 animal control calls for service 

• 62 – calls for service to assist other agencies, 14 – ambulance, 5– fire department, 13 – sheriff, 12 -CSP, and 18-
others. 

• Citizens Assist – 70 – incidents for vin inspections, civil stand-by’s and others. 

• Property crimes 20 – theft from building, possession/receiving stolen property, fraud, misc. thefts, lost/found 
property, missing person, vandalism. 

• Crimes against person 31- Disturbances/disorderly, domestic violence, harassment, suspicious person 
complaints. 

• Sex Offender Registration- 1 

• Missing Person(s)- 0 

• Juvenile – 0 

• Unattended death- 0 

• 16- Arrests, 11- booked into the Moffat County Jail 

• Traffic contacts 74 – traffic contacts, 3-accident(s), 4- citation(s), 70- warnings, 32 of the traffic contacts were 
citizens of Rangely. 

Personnel Issues:   
• Lead Dispatcher Steele-Mackay resigned her position. 

• Dispatcher Bean has been assigned as Interim Lead Dispatcher. 

• We are accepting internal/ external applications for Dispatch Supervisor. 

Notable issues:  
• Lt. Garner attended FBI LEEDA’s supervisor class. 

• Chief Hamblin attended the FBI LEEDA’s annual conference. 

• Officer Burr and Officer Duke attended the Colorado POST refresher academy and graduated, becoming certified 
Officers in Colorado. 

• 3rd Coffee with a Cop event 

• Chief Hamblin taught SFST’s to the CNCC NPS students. 

• The PD assisted with ROAR activities. 

• The PD assisted with Prom and Rowdy worm activities. 
 
 
 

 

10



GAS DEPARTMENT/Building & Grounds – SUBMITTED BY KELLI NEIBERGER______________________ 

Project status/Current Issues:  

• Meter Reading with new meter reading equipment, get reads off large meters, go over reports and meter proof, 

make corrections, reprogram meters, final meter proof, recheck proof after gas rate calculated – make final 

changes 

• Gas usages and rate for April 

• Average low temperature for March 

• Weekly charts, pressures, odorant check 

• Leak Calls – 4 

• Customer Calls – 0 

• Carbon Monoxide tests - 0 

• Locates for March - 33 

• Work Orders – 16 

• NPSO – (Non-payment shut-offs) – started with 10 and 2 were shut off 

• File Annual DR 0525 and Annual Municipal Reports for 2021 

• Temporary abandonment of Moon Lake Electric’s gas service so dirt work can be done 

• Install two new fuel lines at Silver Sage spaces 12 & 13 

• Annual plastic fusion qualification 

• Gas line hit at 961 Half Turn Rd. – repairs made – paperwork completed 

• New containment vessel for diesel fuel tank at Gas Shop 

• Cathodic Protection testing – test stations and 10% service riser list 

• Annual Valve Inspection 

• Begin Leak Survey on Schools, Churches, Businesses and Public Buildings 

• Annual Regulator Inspection 

• Update Contractor Brochure, update contractor list and mail informational brochure to 45 contractors in Town 

or that do work in Town 

• Inventory 

• Purchasing – we continue to purchase necessities but are being careful not to spend unnecessarily. 

• Call Schedule May 

• Review and update our Emergency and Public Awareness plans 

• Clean and paint tested meters 

• Locate load is increasing as the weather warms up and people start their spring projects 

• Continue with PMCs (Periodic Meter Changes) – we are about half-way done 

• Jon Templeton took the mosquito fogger to Grand Junction on April 14th to have the fogger calibrated. We are 

required to have it done annually and Van Deist (where we purchased the fogger) will do that for no charge 

• Work on White River Village Apt. #2 – apartment is being redone (new paint, carpet, vanity, etc.) 

• Leak on fire suppression system at White River Village repaired – systems tested at Town Hall and White River 

Village 

• Repair leak at Town home at 1103 W. Main St. 

• Sprinkler system repairs at the Museum 

• Spray weeds 

11



• Sanitize surfaces at shop and in office 

• Clean shop and wash trucks 

Personnel Issues/Events:  

Notable Issues/Events:   

• Safety Committee Meeting done through email April 21st 

 

Public Works– Submitted by Jeff LeBleu 

Project status/Current Issues: 
Crew Activities: 

• Haul street sweeper material off Colorow 

• Clean upper shop 

• Utility locates 

• Repair and replace four curb stops on Halfturn Road 

• Clean up trees from windstorm 

• Wash crosswalk on Main and Birch Ave.  

• Patch potholes 

• Take sanders and plows off trucks 

• Repair grate on North Birch Ave 

• Work on boom truck, stake 2” and 4” water line project 

• Install valve risers on miscellaneous valves 

• Repair patch at bulk water 

• Install new batteries in pedestrian crosswalk signs 

• Repair curb stop on Jones Ave. 

• Block back entrance at County Road two pit 

• Mow and fertilize shop yards 

• Saw cut at 225 South White Ave for curb stop repair 

• Prep pad for park bench on Kennedy walk path 

• Help CNCC in banner repairs on Kennedy Dr 

• Repair curb stop on Darius Ave 

• Vehicle Maintenance 

• Fix pipe on green house at Community Garden 

• Mow vacant lots 

• Sweep streets  

Personnel issues:   

Notable Issues/events:  

 

 

 

 

 

12



Water/Wastewater – Submitted by Donald Reed__________________________________ 

Project status/Current Issues:  

Water Treatment Plant:   

• Water quality still isn’t the best, but it is a lot better than we had last month. We are required to maintain a total 

organic carbon removal of 20% on a running annual average. Currently we’re at 22.3%, which is a lot closer than 

we’d like. Soon, we may need to consider the addition of a pre-treatment before the water gets into the water 

plant. 

• The last week of the month, snowpack was averaging between 89%-93%. Historical trends indicate that we 

should be okay for the year. 

• Typically, around this time, USGS has data available for river flows at Boise Creek (Near Rangely), but so far, we 

haven’t seen anything. The data we get from this measuring site is crucial for us to observe our river flows and is 

what we base potential water restrictions off. If we don’t see anything soon, we’ll be contacting USGS to figure 

out what’s going on. 

• Average water output from the plant in April was 347k gallons. 

• Water loss for the month of April was at 13%. 

• Monthly compliance reports were sent to state with no violations being noted.  

• The water treatment plant’s roof membrane was partially lifted during the windstorm on 4/5. Additional 

damage was sustained during another windstorm a couple of days later. We are working with Hurst roofing and 

CIRSA to get the roof repaired. 

• High zone pump station also sustained some roof damage during the storms and will need to have the roofing 

repaired. We’re communicating with local contractors to get bids for this work. 

• CDPHE sent us a letter to inform us that our Lead and Copper sampling is now to be completed once every three 

years instead of annual, which will save thousands of dollars in the long run. 

Wastewater Plant:  

• Muller is continuing work on the new headworks facility. They’re currently working on getting the influent and 

effluent wet wells completed. 

• Plumbing was completely replaced inside the existing headworks. We used plastic PEX to avoid further 

complications with H2S. 

• State Compliance Reports were sent out with no violations. 

Utility Department Activities: 

• Had 32 locates, meter reads and rereads, several work orders, high/Low usage report. 

• Storm sewer cleaning cannot resume until we get our rodder pump fixed, which is scheduled for later this 

month. 

• Attended meetings with PAC and the Conservancy meeting. 

• Jetted several sewer lines as part of regular maintenance 

• Irrigation is now up and running. We’re currently waiting on parts to arrive so we can put our second irrigation 

pump into use. 

Personnel issues:  

Notable Issues/events:  N/A 
13



Animal Shelter– Submitted by Linda Farney_______________________________________ 

Project status/Current Issues: 

• 19 Running At Large 

• 1 Returned from Foster 

• 8 Impounded 

• 6 Reclaimed 

• 1 Dog Relinquished 

• 1 cat euthanized 

• 4 Cats Abandoned 

• 2 Cats adopted 

• 2 Stray cats 

• 4 Cats on site 

• 1 Chicken Running At Large 

Personnel Issues/Events: N/A 

Notable Issues/events: N/A 

 

WRV/Liquor-Code Enforcement– Submitted by Janet Miller_____________________ 

White River Village: 

Project status/Current Issues:  
• Processed 2 tenant recertifications and sent to USDA 

• Regular maintenance and cleaning are always ongoing 

• All common areas are being sanitized daily to decrease the risk of Covid spread.  

• Apartment #2 renovation: 

o Removed all flooring, baseboard heaters, old vanity in bathroom and old light fixtures 

o Muller Building Service was hired to remove popcorn ceiling, repair all of sheetrock damage, and apply 

new texture to the entire apartment. 

o Began painting 

Personnel Issues/Events: 

Notable Issues/events: 

Liquor Licensing:  

• Processed 1 Renewal Liquor Licenses and sent to State for processing 

Special Event Permit:  

Main Street/Town Hall:  

• Continued spring cleanup of the bump outs along Main Street and Town Hall 

• Working with the Chamber to plan the Golden Spade Program for 2022 

• Planned, organized, and held Rangely’s second annual Arbor Day Celebration. This event helps to educate our 

students about the benefits and importance of trees and encourages our youth to become involved with the 

planting and care of these important resources. 

 

 

14



• All art from the Arbor Day poster contest was distributed to the following businesses so that they can be 

displayed for the community to see.  

o Giovanni’s 

o White River Village 

o Eagle Crest 

o Rec Center 

o White River Market 

o True Value 

Notable Issues/events  

Code Enforcement: 

• 6.22.020 Domestic Animals Prohibited 0 

• 8.08.030 Weeds on Property 0 

• 8.08.040 Refuse on Property 5 

• 8.08.045 Junk Vehicle on Property 2 

• 8.08.047 Vehicle Parking 0 

• 8.08.060 Abandoned Containers 0 

• 8.08.070 Disposal of Refuse 2 

• 8.08.090 Other 1 

• 10.06.020 Extended Parking Prohibited 1 

• 12.08.030 Obstructing a Highway or Passageway 1 

• 262.3 Location Systems 0 

• 17.040.040 Mobile Homes and RVs Location 0 

• 4.01.010 Public Nuisances 0 

• 60.1 Approval Required 1 

• 13.04.110 Meters, Meter Pits, and Service Lines 0 

• Citations Issued in Month of April 3 

• Total New Cases April 8 

• Total Cases Closed 10 
Notable Issues/events: None 

 

Planner/Town Engineer - Submitted by - Jocelyn Mullen PE_______________________ 

Project status/Current Issues:  

• Headworks Replacement Project Grant 

o Work continues new Headworks construction. Crew is forming walls and lids for influent and effluent 

wet wells now. Town is performing sampling and monitoring tasks for Mueller Construction, for fees. 

Negotiating Change Order #2 to restore full scope of electrical and mechanical work removed for cost 

savings last fall. DOLA $375,000 supplemental funds committed. 

• Soliciting engineering bids on Halfturn Waterline Replacement project  

o Will Pothole multiple locations along the line to determine depths and conflicts prior to starting 

engineering work 

 

 
15



  

• Waiting to hear from CDOT for $1.6 M Main Street grant to rebuild the east entrance to Rangely  

• Cogency project development work 

o Cogency waiting for financing 

• Grants on the Horizon  

o Office of Just Transitions notified us that our $396,255 grant request to improve river access at Camper 

Park has been funded. 

o Applied to AGNC, CDPHE and Main St for additional funds to add 4 more solar lights on the Kennedy 

Drive Multi-Use Path north of the lights we added last year. AGNC has awarded the grant and CDPHE has 

moved us to the next round for further consideration. 

o Planning on applying for a DOLA 2022 EMIG for the Halfturn Street waterline replacement project 

o Planning on applying for an EDA Travel and Tourism Grant to improve 2 additional river access locations 

in Town  

o Planning on applying for a CDPHE Brownsfields grant to address asbestos hazard at 238 S. Birch St. 

• 6. Planning work 

o NOAs, calls and emails regarding planning, development and building questions 

o Working with potential new owners for a special use permit for Ellingwood Park 

 

16



13 – Reports from Officers 
14 – Old Business
15 – New Business

17



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Invoice detail

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

04/22 AFFORDABLE FIRE PROTECTION BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83397 726 600.00

          Total AFFORDABLE FIRE PROTECTION: 600.00

04/22 AFLAC AFLAC PAYABLE 04/15/2022 83340 977373 254.51

          Total AFLAC: 254.51

04/22 ALL COPY PRODUCTS INC. OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83341 31390475 991.94

          Total ALL COPY PRODUCTS INC.: 991.94

04/22 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SAFETY AWARNESS PROGRAM 04/15/2022 83342 14ND-KNQL-3 99.83

04/22 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 04/15/2022 83342 1MLD-FXTJ-4- 340.63

04/22 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CHEMICALS/LABORATORY 04/29/2022 83398 11XL-QKP6-FD 31.44

          Total AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES: 471.90

04/22 AQUIONICS INC MACHINERY OPERATIONS/MAINT 04/29/2022 83399 0054860-IN 216.84

          Total AQUIONICS INC: 216.84

04/22 BADGER METER INC MACHINERY OPERATIONS & MAINT 04/15/2022 83343 1497394 5,062.46

          Total BADGER METER INC: 5,062.46

04/22 BASIN NURSERY & GARDEN CENTER BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83344 207708 2,034.26

          Total BASIN NURSERY & GARDEN CENTER: 2,034.26

04/22 BNF: USBANK TRUST NA CWR&PD DIRECT LOAN INTEREST 04/15/2022 15138 D13F318 05/20 46,478.39

          Total BNF: USBANK TRUST NA: 46,478.39

04/22 BOHANNAN HUSTON INC CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 04/15/2022 83345 000118575 5,883.00

          Total BOHANNAN HUSTON INC: 5,883.00

04/22 BOY-KO SUPPLY CO BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83346 192247 144.78

04/22 BOY-KO SUPPLY CO BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83346 192247-1 35.00

          Total BOY-KO SUPPLY CO: 179.78

04/22 BURR, BRADLEY COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 15132 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total BURR, BRADLEY: 40.00

04/22 CACP TRAINING/PROF DEVELOPMENT 04/29/2022 83400 3542 250.00

          Total CACP: 250.00

04/22 CALDWELL, JEANNIE COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 83347 03/2022 EXP 40.00

04/22 CALDWELL, JEANNIE COMMUNICATIONS 04/29/2022 83401 04/2022 EXP 40.00

18



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     2

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

          Total CALDWELL, JEANNIE: 80.00

04/22 CANNON LAW OFFICE PROF/TECH SERIVCES 04/15/2022 83348 696 780.00

          Total CANNON LAW OFFICE: 780.00

04/22 CANYON PINTADO VETERINARY CLINIC VETERINARY EXPENSES 04/15/2022 83349 4408 74.13

04/22 CANYON PINTADO VETERINARY CLINIC VETERINARY EXPENSES 04/15/2022 83349 4409 39.20

          Total CANYON PINTADO VETERINARY CLINIC: 113.33

04/22 CASELLE, INC. PROF/TECH SERVICES 04/15/2022 83350 116032 1,418.00

          Total CASELLE, INC.: 1,418.00

04/22 CEBT VOLUNTARY/SUP LIFE INS PAYABLE 04/15/2022 83351 INV 0048336 33,673.88

          Total CEBT: 33,673.88

04/22 CENTURYLINK DWC FISCAL AGENT ACCOUNT 04/29/2022 83396 300908689 04/ 168.62

04/22 CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS 04/29/2022 83402 300915074 04/ 1,589.39

          Total CENTURYLINK: 1,758.01

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING REVENUE 04/15/2022 83393 LABOR 04 202 320.00-

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 SAGE RENT 0 3,103.00

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 TRUE VALUE  81.99-

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 TRUE VALUE  6.79-

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 TRUE VALUE  6.49-

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 TRUE VALUE  18.99-

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 TRUE VALUE  14.99-

04/22 CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83393 TRUE VALUE  5.99-

          Total CF INVESTORS PARTNERSHIP LLP: 2,647.76

04/22 CIMARRON TELECOMMUNICATIONS LLC COMMUNICATIONS 04/29/2022 83403 87927 55.00

          Total CIMARRON TELECOMMUNICATIONS LLC: 55.00

04/22 CIRSA PREPAID EXPENSES 04/15/2022 83352 220761 26,213.73

          Total CIRSA: 26,213.73

04/22 COLOCPA SERVICES, PC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83353 21290 67.50

          Total COLOCPA SERVICES, PC: 67.50

04/22 COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC PROF/TECH SERIVCES 04/15/2022 83354 574A3FOF-008 32.16

04/22 COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83404 574A3FOF-008 58.18

          Total COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC: 90.34

04/22 COOK, TRACY COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 15133 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total COOK, TRACY: 40.00

04/22 COX, MARYBEL COMPUTER PROCESSING 04/15/2022 83355 03/2022 EXP 40.00

19



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     3

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

          Total COX, MARYBEL: 40.00

04/22 DAVIDSON, DONALD J MAYOR/COUNCIL 04/15/2022 15127 9 100.00

          Total DAVIDSON, DONALD J: 100.00

04/22 DIRECTV UTILITIES 04/29/2022 83405 088092706X22 482.25

          Total DIRECTV: 482.25

04/22 DUCEY'S ELECTRIC CAPITAL OUTLAY 04/15/2022 83356 67594 595.00

04/22 DUCEY'S ELECTRIC CAPITAL OUTLAY 04/15/2022 83356 67595 1,663.16

04/22 DUCEY'S ELECTRIC BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83356 67598 118.00

04/22 DUCEY'S ELECTRIC STREETS/DRAINAGE MATLS/EXPENS 04/15/2022 83356 71919 353.05

          Total DUCEY'S ELECTRIC: 2,729.21

04/22 DUKE, KAYLYN COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 15134 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total DUKE, KAYLYN: 40.00

04/22 ELLIS, KEELY MAYOR/COUNCIL 04/15/2022 15128 27 100.00

          Total ELLIS, KEELY: 100.00

04/22 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83357 1307780 100.95

          Total FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116: 100.95

04/22 FIDELITY ADVISOR FUNDS RETIREMENT PAYABLE 04/12/2022 83338 PR0410220 9,117.23

04/22 FIDELITY ADVISOR FUNDS RETIREMENT PAYABLE 04/26/2022 83395 PR0424220 9,927.17

          Total FIDELITY ADVISOR FUNDS: 19,044.40

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD TRAINING/PROF DEVELOPMENT 04/29/2022 83406 0162 04/22 322.88

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD SEWER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 0591 04/22 531.62

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD TRAINING/PROF DEVELOPMENT 04/29/2022 83406 2225 04/22 1,094.61

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 3054 04/22 14.99

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD TRAINING/PROF DEVELOPMENT 04/29/2022 83406 3241 04/22 888.49

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83406 3539 04/22 254.92

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 4358 04/22 10.00

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83406 4643 04/22 23.50

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 4731 04/22 9.57

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD COMPUTER PROCESSING 04/29/2022 83406 4778 04/22 14.99

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD FUEL 04/29/2022 83406 4791 04/22 1,255.40

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD POLICE MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 5042 04/22 35.11

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD PROF/TECH SERVICES 04/29/2022 83406 5628 04/22 3,560.24

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD MACHINERY OPERATIONS & MAINT 04/29/2022 83406 5917 04/22 978.64

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD MARKETING 04/29/2022 83406 7343 04/22 552.07

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 7775 04/22 14.99

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 8537 04/22 14.99

04/22 FIRST BANKCARD OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83406 9538 04/22 14.99

          Total FIRST BANKCARD: 9,592.00

04/22 FPPA FPPA D&D 04/12/2022 15126 PR0410220 455.27

04/22 FPPA FPPA D&D 04/26/2022 15175 PR0424220 459.44

20



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     4

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

          Total FPPA: 914.71

04/22 GALLS LLC UNIFORMS 04/15/2022 83358 020769273 3,032.80

04/22 GALLS LLC UNIFORMS 04/15/2022 83358 020780752 16.58

          Total GALLS LLC: 3,049.38

04/22 GAZETTE, THE MARKETING 04/15/2022 83359 040822 2,235.00

          Total GAZETTE, THE: 2,235.00

04/22 GMCO CORPORATION STREETS/DRAINAGE MATLS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83407 22-4671 3,415.50

          Total GMCO CORPORATION: 3,415.50

04/22 GRANGER, ALISA MAYOR/COUNCIL 04/15/2022 83360 35 100.00

          Total GRANGER, ALISA: 100.00

04/22 GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83361 31755 400.00

04/22 GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83361 31771 225.00

04/22 GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83361 31795 250.00

04/22 GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83361 31804 250.00

04/22 GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83361 31819 250.00

04/22 GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT OPS/MAINT 04/15/2022 83361 31821 400.00

          Total GRIMSLEY UPHOLSTERY: 1,775.00

04/22 GROWERS SUPPLY BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83362 7688051 64.38

          Total GROWERS SUPPLY: 64.38

04/22 H & H HYDRAULICS, INC. VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/29/2022 83408 10082 355.54

          Total H & H HYDRAULICS, INC.: 355.54

04/22 HACH PROF/TECH SERVICES 04/15/2022 83363 12964432 5,209.83

          Total HACH: 5,209.83

04/22 HAMBLIN, TIRYNN COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 15135 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total HAMBLIN, TIRYNN: 40.00

04/22 HILTON, KELLER COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 15136 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total HILTON, KELLER: 40.00

04/22 KOKOPELLI ANIMAL HOSPITAL POLICE MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83364 128925 123.76

          Total KOKOPELLI ANIMAL HOSPITAL: 123.76

04/22 KUCK, JAYNE CASH CLEARING - UTILITIES 04/15/2022 83365 UTIL RFND 04/ 66.10

          Total KUCK, JAYNE: 66.10

04/22 MAIL SERVICES MARKETING 04/15/2022 83366 1833683 808.07

21



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     5

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

          Total MAIL SERVICES: 808.07

04/22 MILLARD, KETCHUM COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 15137 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total MILLARD, KETCHUM: 40.00

04/22 MOON LAKE ELECTRIC ASSN. HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83394 04142022 4.63

04/22 MOON LAKE ELECTRIC ASSN. UTILITIES 04/15/2022 83394 4 04/2022 1,350.74

04/22 MOON LAKE ELECTRIC ASSN. UTILITIES 04/15/2022 83394 87 04/2022 13,347.64

          Total MOON LAKE ELECTRIC ASSN.: 14,703.01

04/22 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. CAPITAL OUTLAY 04/29/2022 83409 16177375 39,959.34

          Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.: 39,959.34

04/22 MOUNTAIN STATES PIPE & SUPPLY DEPARTMENT MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83367 INV22204 2,155.43

04/22 MOUNTAIN STATES PIPE & SUPPLY MACHINERY OPERATIONS/MAINT 04/29/2022 83410 INV22384 1,589.25

04/22 MOUNTAIN STATES PIPE & SUPPLY MACHINERY OPERATIONS/MAINT 04/29/2022 83410 INV22448 899.00

          Total MOUNTAIN STATES PIPE & SUPPLY: 4,643.68

04/22 MUELLER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 04/15/2022 83368 21-4530-04 225,871.95

04/22 MUELLER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 04/15/2022 83368 41422 1,220.00-

          Total MUELLER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC.: 224,651.95

04/22 MULLEN, JOCELYN COMPUTER PROCESSING 04/15/2022 83369 03/2022 EXP 40.00

          Total MULLEN, JOCELYN: 40.00

04/22 MULLER'S BUILDING SERVICE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83411 WRV APT 2 04/ 1,750.00

          Total MULLER'S BUILDING SERVICE: 1,750.00

04/22 NETWORKS UNLIMITED INC COMPUTER PROCESSING 04/15/2022 83370 99112671 2,711.08

          Total NETWORKS UNLIMITED INC: 2,711.08

04/22 NICHOLS STORE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/15/2022 83371 41698 39.90

04/22 NICHOLS STORE OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83371 41858 49.00

04/22 NICHOLS STORE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/15/2022 83371 41868 24.95

04/22 NICHOLS STORE VETERINARY EXPENSES 04/29/2022 83412 41793 97.00

          Total NICHOLS STORE: 210.85

04/22 NORTHWEST PARKWAY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/29/2022 83413 12389220 6.15

          Total NORTHWEST PARKWAY: 6.15

04/22 PINNACOL ASSURANCE PREPAID EXPENSES 04/29/2022 83414 20866665 2,849.00

          Total PINNACOL ASSURANCE: 2,849.00

04/22 PIONEERS MEDICAL CENTER PROF/TECH SERVICES 04/15/2022 83372 2970K15970 120.00

22



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     6

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

          Total PIONEERS MEDICAL CENTER: 120.00

04/22 PRATER'S PLUMBING & HEATING BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83373 8638 222.00

          Total PRATER'S PLUMBING & HEATING: 222.00

04/22 PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT OPS/MAINT 04/15/2022 83374 51244 312.49

04/22 PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83374 51278 514.61

04/22 PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83374 51282 113.28

04/22 PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83374 51289 25.00

04/22 PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/29/2022 83415 51324 705.12

04/22 PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/29/2022 83415 51325 1,079.32

          Total PROFESSIONAL TOUCH OF NWCO LLC: 2,749.82

04/22 PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83375 PSI736527 793.00

04/22 PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83375 PSI736542 487.00

04/22 PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83375 PSI736549 73.00

04/22 PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83375 PSI736555 127.00

04/22 PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC PROFESSIONAL/TECHNICAL SERVIC 04/15/2022 83375 PSI736559 633.00

04/22 PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC GAS MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83375 PSI736561 467.00

          Total PYE BARKER FIRE & SAFETY LLC: 2,580.00

04/22 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83376 24000899 148.11

04/22 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83376 24189908 19.99

04/22 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83416 24519265 57.86

          Total QUILL CORPORATION: 225.96

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY MACHINERY OPERATIONS & MAINT 04/15/2022 83377 600221 230.47

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83377 602070 41.97

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83377 602263 120.99

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY MACHINERY MAINT/OPERATION 04/15/2022 83377 602270 10.29

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY MACHINERY OPERATIONS & MAINT 04/15/2022 83377 602422 16.09

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/15/2022 83377 602884 5.49

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/15/2022 83377 603204 3.49

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/15/2022 83377 603374 104.70

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83377 603377 26.58

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY MOSQUITO ABATEMENT 04/15/2022 83377 603472 47.26

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83417 603535 4.09

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY MACHINERY OPERATIONS/MAINT 04/29/2022 83417 603609 77.98

04/22 RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY MACHINERY OPERATIONS/MAINT 04/29/2022 83417 603611 47.92

          Total RANGELY AUTO PARTS & SUPPLY: 737.32

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 425604 18.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 425610 10.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 425703 19.58

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426232 13.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE MACHINERY MAINT/OPERATION 04/15/2022 83378 426385 13.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426431 25.27

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 426438 43.98

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 426618 37.98

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426653 23.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426705 116.61

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE UNIFORMS 04/15/2022 83378 426720 165.00

23



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     7

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426777 3.00

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE GAS MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 426818 46.46

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426842 15.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426844 53.48

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE CHEMICALS 04/15/2022 83378 426845 10.74

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426847 14.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 426884 41.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 426919 6.79

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 426940 2.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427051 7.96

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427052 35.97

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427056 6.49

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427063 18.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427071 14.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427193 21.07

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427221 1.38

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427227 7.27

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427228 8.16

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427278 5.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427292 22.24

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427302 106.96

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427335 76.33

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427365 16.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE VETERINARY EXPENSES 04/15/2022 83378 427446 47.97

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE MACHINERY OPERATIONS & MAINT 04/15/2022 83378 427500 179.92

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83378 427506 62.27

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83378 427562 22.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE VHCL/EQUIP OPER/MAINT 04/15/2022 83378 427655 9.48

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 427554 7.27

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE WATER MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83418 427933 34.97

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 427942 15.78

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 427960 25.48

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 427968 65.93

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428015 9.98

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428027 14.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428053 51.47

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428066 39.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE GAS MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83418 428071 8.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428122 137.06

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428131 55.39

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428138 41.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428142 25.36

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428147 42.06

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428151 32.45

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE HOUSING MAINT/REPAIRS 04/29/2022 83418 428152 2.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428168 49.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE GAS MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83418 428205 152.16

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428267 47.98

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428454 160.89

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE DEPARTMENTAL MATERIALS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83418 428531 48.98

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428580 409.34

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 428591 46.99

04/22 RANGELY HARDWARE BUILDING/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 04/29/2022 83418 438165 27.98

          Total RANGELY HARDWARE: 2,916.68

04/22 RANGELY SCHOOL FOUNDATION, INC FOUNDATION TRANSFER 04/29/2022 83419 MARCH 2022 12,438.25

24



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     8

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

          Total RANGELY SCHOOL FOUNDATION, INC: 12,438.25

04/22 RANGELY TRASH SERVICE BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83379 110179 991.50

          Total RANGELY TRASH SERVICE: 991.50

04/22 RANGELY, TOWN OF UTILITIES 04/15/2022 83380 TOR 03/2022 8,537.11

04/22 RANGELY, TOWN OF UTILITIES 04/15/2022 83380 WRV 03/2022 1,987.46

          Total RANGELY, TOWN OF: 10,524.57

04/22 RIO BLANCO COUNTY BUILDING INSPECTOR 04/15/2022 83381 03/22 BLDG S 992.78

04/22 RIO BLANCO COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS 04/15/2022 83381 0322-11 405.00

04/22 RIO BLANCO COUNTY SALES & USE TAX GENERAL SALES TAX - STATE 04/15/2022 83382 SALES TAX 03 29,811.84

          Total RIO BLANCO COUNTY: 31,209.62

04/22 ROBIE, TREY MAYOR/COUNCIL 04/15/2022 15129 73 100.00

          Total ROBIE, TREY: 100.00

04/22 SATTERLY, ROB SECURITY DEPOSIT RESERVED 04/29/2022 83420 RFND DEP 04/ 210.00

          Total SATTERLY, ROB: 210.00

04/22 SBT INTERNET DWC FISCAL AGENT ACCOUNT 04/15/2022 83383 033799 45.00

          Total SBT INTERNET: 45.00

04/22 SCHMEUSER GORDON MEYER, INC. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 04/29/2022 83421 2005-327.014- 2,189.50

          Total SCHMEUSER GORDON MEYER, INC.: 2,189.50

04/22 SERVICE MASTER CLEAN HOUSING MANAGEMENT EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83422 6374 250.00

          Total SERVICE MASTER CLEAN: 250.00

04/22 SGS ACCUTEST INC. CHEMICALS/LABORATORY 04/29/2022 83423 52160135714 105.00

          Total SGS ACCUTEST INC.: 105.00

04/22 SHAFFER, ANDREW MAYOR/COUNCIL 04/15/2022 15130 97 150.00

          Total SHAFFER, ANDREW: 150.00

04/22 SOLAR TRAFFIC SYSTEMS, INC STREETS/DRAINAGE MATLS/EXPENS 04/29/2022 83424 22-7594 392.00

          Total SOLAR TRAFFIC SYSTEMS, INC: 392.00

04/22 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY RC VOLUNTARY/SUP LIFE INS PAYABLE 04/29/2022 83425 160730 04/202 727.13

          Total STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY RC: 727.13

04/22 SUMMIT ENERGY, LLC NATURAL GAS PURCHASES 04/15/2022 83384 03221RANG 68,277.32

          Total SUMMIT ENERGY, LLC: 68,277.32

25



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     9

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Period Payee Invoice GL Account Title Check Issue Date Check Number Invoice Number Amount

04/22 TAYLOR FENCE COMPANY BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83385 55649 180.00

          Total TAYLOR FENCE COMPANY: 180.00

04/22 TRANSUNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE PROF/TECH SERVICES 04/15/2022 83386 STMNT 03/202 75.00

          Total TRANSUNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE: 75.00

04/22 UNCC PROFESSIONAL/TECHNICAL SERVIC 04/15/2022 83387 2220331226 48.10

          Total UNCC: 48.10

04/22 VERIZON WIRELESS BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83388 9902710854 853.83

          Total VERIZON WIRELESS: 853.83

04/22 VERNAL WINNELSON CO. BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83389 495319 01 235.06

          Total VERNAL WINNELSON CO.: 235.06

04/22 WEBBER, TIMOTHY J. MAYOR/COUNCIL 04/15/2022 15131 18 100.00

          Total WEBBER, TIMOTHY J.: 100.00

04/22 WEX BANK FUEL 04/13/2022 83339 79912857 5,155.34

          Total WEX BANK: 5,155.34

04/22 WHITE RIVER MARKET OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSE 04/15/2022 83390 220331-2-1-1-5 15.96

04/22 WHITE RIVER MARKET BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83390 220404-2-1-1-1 4.82

04/22 WHITE RIVER MARKET BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83390 220405-3-2-2-8 2.79

04/22 WHITE RIVER MARKET BUILDING MAINTENANCE 04/15/2022 83390 220406-2-1-1-4 15.58

04/22 WHITE RIVER MARKET GAS MATERIALS/EXPENSE 04/29/2022 83426 220120-2-1-1-2 16.97

          Total WHITE RIVER MARKET: 56.12

04/22 WILCZEK, KAREN S JUDGES 04/15/2022 83391 STMNT 04/202 300.00

          Total WILCZEK, KAREN S: 300.00

04/22 WRB REC & PARK DISTRICT DUES/CONTRIBUTIONS 04/15/2022 83392 1986 114.00

          Total WRB REC & PARK DISTRICT: 114.00

          Grand Totals:  615,670.89

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

GL Account Debit Credit Proof

01-11700 66.10 .00 66.10

01-21500 .00 66.10- 66.10-

10-14100 24,387.05 .00 24,387.05

10-21500 142.52 217,491.88- 217,349.36-

10-22255 17,044.70 .00 17,044.70

10-22280 1,999.70 .00 1,999.70

26



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     10

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Account Debit Credit Proof

10-22290 33,258.00 .00 33,258.00

10-22292 914.71 .00 914.71

10-22295 254.51 .00 254.51

10-22298 1,143.01 .00 1,143.01

10-31-300 29,811.84 .00 29,811.84

10-36-615 213.62 .00 213.62

10-41-110 650.00 .00 650.00

10-41-200 130.95 .00 130.95

10-41-210 15.43 .00 15.43

10-41-240 4,381.18 .00 4,381.18

10-41-400 114.00 .00 114.00

10-42-110 300.00 .00 300.00

10-42-118 280.00 .00 280.00

10-43-200 239.94 .00 239.94

10-43-205 969.03 .00 969.03

10-43-220 132.16 .00 132.16

10-43-250 812.42 .00 812.42

10-43-270 1,752.08 .00 1,752.08

10-43-285 128.10 .00 128.10

10-44-200 269.64 .00 269.64

10-44-205 169.05 .00 169.05

10-44-220 2,114.13 .00 2,114.13

10-46-200 11.91 .00 11.91

10-46-205 129.05 .00 129.05

10-46-220 349.99 .00 349.99

10-46-250 292.08 .00 292.08

10-46-260 4,279.17 .00 4,279.17

10-46-270 170.83 .00 170.83

10-46-280 712.49 .00 712.49

10-46-285 607.53 .00 607.53

10-46-290 24.28 .00 24.28

10-46-360 47.26 .00 47.26

10-48-115 992.78 .00 992.78

10-48-200 74.35 .00 74.35

10-48-205 40.00 .00 40.00

10-48-210 3,164.84 .00 3,164.84

10-48-220 400.00 .00 400.00

10-48-250 80.00 .00 80.00

10-48-300 2,910.92 .00 2,910.92

10-49-640 12,438.25 .00 12,438.25

10-54-200 581.69 142.52- 439.17

10-54-205 129.05 .00 129.05

10-54-210 78.82 .00 78.82

10-54-220 75.00 .00 75.00

10-54-230 3,721.20 .00 3,721.20

10-54-250 793.39 .00 793.39

10-54-260 270.31 .00 270.31

10-54-270 584.03 .00 584.03

10-54-280 640.20 .00 640.20

10-54-285 1,792.36 .00 1,792.36

10-54-320 3,049.38 .00 3,049.38

10-54-330 158.87 .00 158.87

10-54-700 39,959.34 .00 39,959.34

10-55-200 11.91 .00 11.91

10-55-260 594.21 .00 594.21

10-55-285 69.26 .00 69.26

10-55-310 258.30 .00 258.30

10-60-200 11.91 .00 11.91

27



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     11

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Account Debit Credit Proof

10-60-205 129.05 .00 129.05

10-60-220 120.00 .00 120.00

10-60-250 173.26 .00 173.26

10-60-260 1,107.81 .00 1,107.81

10-60-270 5,160.48 .00 5,160.48

10-60-280 3,359.27 .00 3,359.27

10-60-285 750.98 .00 750.98

10-60-290 1,036.22 .00 1,036.22

10-60-330 504.05 .00 504.05

10-60-365 4,160.55 .00 4,160.55

51-21500 .00 78,556.52- 78,556.52-

51-49-840 36,604.80 .00 36,604.80

51-49-850 9,873.59 .00 9,873.59

51-71-200 21.91 .00 21.91

51-71-205 129.05 .00 129.05

51-71-220 5,526.33 .00 5,526.33

51-71-250 629.47 .00 629.47

51-71-260 125.89 .00 125.89

51-71-270 5,733.31 .00 5,733.31

51-71-280 41.97 .00 41.97

51-71-285 700.17 .00 700.17

51-71-290 5,242.38 .00 5,242.38

51-71-330 2,162.68 .00 2,162.68

51-71-350 121.20 .00 121.20

51-71-700 2,258.16 .00 2,258.16

51-72-200 11.91 .00 11.91

51-72-250 129.05 .00 129.05

51-72-330 173.90 .00 173.90

51-72-800 5,883.00 .00 5,883.00

51-73-270 350.41 .00 350.41

51-73-290 2,614.15 .00 2,614.15

51-73-330 223.19 .00 223.19

52-21500 .00 71,696.94- 71,696.94-

52-40-200 11.91 .00 11.91

52-40-203 99.83 .00 99.83

52-40-205 129.05 .00 129.05

52-40-220 48.10 .00 48.10

52-40-250 405.52 .00 405.52

52-40-260 60.81 .00 60.81

52-40-270 845.45 .00 845.45

52-40-280 605.54 .00 605.54

52-40-285 521.83 .00 521.83

52-40-330 691.58 .00 691.58

52-40-410 68,277.32 .00 68,277.32

53-21500 1,220.00 238,443.25- 237,223.25-

53-40-200 27.87 .00 27.87

53-40-205 144.04 .00 144.04

53-40-220 316.50 .00 316.50

53-40-240 294.50 .00 294.50

53-40-250 294.30 .00 294.30

53-40-260 386.76 .00 386.76

53-40-270 6,998.97 .00 6,998.97

53-40-280 9.48 .00 9.48

53-40-285 644.55 .00 644.55

53-40-290 216.84 .00 216.84

53-40-320 165.00 .00 165.00

53-40-330 531.62 .00 531.62

53-40-350 10.74 .00 10.74

28



TOWN OF RANGELY Check Register - Summary Council Page:     12

Check Issue Dates: 4/1/2022 - 4/30/2022 May 04, 2022  01:48PM

GL Account Debit Credit Proof

53-40-800 228,402.08 1,220.00- 227,182.08

71-21500 .00 7,586.27- 7,586.27-

71-40-200 59.83 .00 59.83

71-40-205 129.05 .00 129.05

71-40-250 179.71 .00 179.71

71-40-260 3,397.23 .00 3,397.23

71-40-270 3,820.45 .00 3,820.45

73-21500 455.24 3,635.78- 3,180.54-

73-23172 210.00 .00 210.00

73-30-100 .00 320.00- 320.00-

73-40-220 11.91 .00 11.91

73-40-250 3,410.88 135.24- 3,275.64

73-40-260 2.99 .00 2.99

76-21500 .00 11.91- 11.91-

76-40-220 11.91 .00 11.91

          Grand Totals:  619,306.41 619,306.41- .00

May 10, 2022   ***APPROVED CHECK REGISTER***

           Mayor:       ______________________________________________________

                             ANDY SHAFFER

  City Council:       TREY ROBIE

                             ALISA GRANGER

                             TIM WEBBER

                             ALISA GRANGER

                             KYLE WREN

                            TODD THAYN

Town Manager:   LISA PIERING

Town Clerk/Treasurer:  MARYBEL COX         

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Invoice detail

29



              

Resolution 2022 – 03 

 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MUNICIPAL CLERK AND TREASURER 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §31-4-304 provides that, after each regular election, the Board of Trustees 

shall appoint a Town Clerk and Town Treasurer 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §13-10-105 provides that the governing body shall appoint a Town Clerk and 

Town Treasurer for a specified term of not less than two years and who may be reappointed for a 

subsequent term; and 

WHEREAS, the current Town Clerk and Treasurer desires to be reappointed to their position. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Rangely, Board of Trustees that: 

Marybel Cox as Town Clerk 

Marybel Cox as Town Treasurer 

RESOLVED this 10th day of May, 2022 by the Town of Rangely, Town Council. 

PASSED AND RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rangely, Rio Blanco County, 

Colorado, this 10th day of May, 2022 by a vote of   ___for and ___ against. 

TOWN OF RANGELY 

______________________________ 

Andrew Shaffer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Marybel Cox, Town Clerk 

Town of Rangely 

30



              

 Resolution 2022-04 

 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MUNICIPAL TOWN ATTORNEY 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §31-4-304 provides that, after each regular election, the Board of Trustees 

shall appoint a Town Attorney 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §13-10-105 provides that the governing body shall appoint a Town Attorney 

for a specified term of not less than two years and who may be reappointed for a subsequent term; and 

WHEREAS, the current Town Attorney desires to be reappointed to their position. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Rangely, Board of Trustees that: 

Heather Cannon as Town Attorney 

RESOLVED this 10th day of May, 2022 by the Town of Rangely, Town Council. 

PASSED AND RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rangely, Rio Blanco County, 

Colorado, this 10th day of May, 2022 by a vote of   ___for and ___ against. 

TOWN OF RANGELY 

______________________________ 

Andrew Shaffer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Marybel Cox, Town Clerk 

Town of Rangely 

31



                 

Resolution 2022-05 

 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §31-4-304 provides that, after each regular election, the Board of Trustees 

shall appoint a Town Municipal Court Judge 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §13-10-105 provides that the governing body shall appoint a Municipal Court 

Judge for a specified term of not less than two years and who may be reappointed for a subsequent 

term; and 

WHEREAS, the current Municipal Court Judge desires to be reappointed to their position. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Rangely, Board of Trustees that: 

Karen Wilczek as Town Municipal Court Judge 

RESOLVED this 10th day of May, 2022 by the Town of Rangely, Town Council. 

PASSED AND RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rangely, Rio Blanco County, 

Colorado, this 10th day of May, 2022 by a vote of   ___for and ___ against. 

TOWN OF RANGELY 

______________________________ 

Andrew Shaffer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Marybel Cox, Town Clerk 

Town of Rangely 

32



16 – Informational Items

33



MAIN
THING

THE
SPRING
2022

Designing 
Main Street  

34



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

MAINTHING
THE

CASE STUDY         RESOURCE GUIDE        SPOTLIGHT        VIDEO

IN THIS ISSUE

Designing 
Main Street 

35



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

VIDEO HIGHLIGHT 
TOW N  O F  L A  J U N TA

V
ID

E
O

 H
IG

H
LI

G
H

T
  |

 L
A

 J
U

N
TA

NEXT36



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

WHAT

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 L
Y

O
N

S
TOW N  O F  LYO N S
M A I N  ST R E E T  M A N AGE R :  BR I A N N A  H OY T

Connecting economic 
vitality and tourism  
with the arts. 

WHAT

The heARTS of LYONS Program is an outdoor collection of art 
all over town. It includes sculptures and wall art from Colorado 
artists, specifically from the Front Range area. 

 • New artwork is cycled every two years. 

 • Each artist receives a stipend from the Lyons Arts and Humanities 
Commission (LAHC) of $750.

 • Local businesses can sponsor artwork, have their name on a plaque 
near it, can throw a celebration or ribbon cutting upon installation, 
and are able to get their name out beyond just their business.

Take the digital public art tour! 
Since its introduction in 2020, it has received 650 views! 

NEXT37

https://www.theclio.com/tour/1091


SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

HOW

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 L
Y

O
N

S

Connecting economic  
vitality and tourism  
with the arts. 

HOW

The goal of the program and Main Street’s involvement is to 
ensure that Lyons’ public art ventures are playing a role in 
economic vitality and tourism. New art installations are often  
a collaboration between the Town, LAHC, Main Street Board, 
and the Historic Preservation Committee. 

 • Grants, sponsorships, and municipal government are potential 
funding sources. 

 • Lyons creates digital tours (both of the artwork and local history) via 
Clio and promotes them through their website and social media, on 
physical flyers, with QR codes in local businesses, and at the museum. 

 • Lyons sends out a call to artists when it is time for fresh pieces.

NEXT38



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 L
Y

O
N

S “
NEXT

QUOTE

Our goal when we tackle a major art project is 
to think about ‘Is this serving our downtown? 
Are we serving the business community? Are 
we encouraging tourism? Are we taking into 
consideration the fact that Lyons is historic?’  
It is not just about public art, it is community.      

— Brianna Hoyt, Main Street Manager 

Connecting economic vitality 
and tourism with the arts. 

39



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 L
Y

O
N

S

TIP:

NEXT

TIP

If you want to reach artists in your 
community, start by reaching out to the 
hubs around you! Talk to arts programs 
and have them distribute your call to their 
contacts and social media. “It is definitely 
an attainable venture for pretty much any 
town,” says Brianna. “But it takes time, and 
you need volunteers who are passionate 
and willing to put in the time.” 

Connecting economic vitality 
and tourism with the arts. 

40



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

WHAT

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 R
A

N
G

E
LY

WHAT

Rangely’s new pocket 
part is located on Main 
Street between Town 
Hall and the Rangely 
Regional Library. 
Previously, the area had 
cracked old cement, no 
amenities, and some 
informational signage. 

NEXT

TOW N  O F  RA N GE LY
M A I N  ST R E E T  M A N AGE R :  J E A N N I E  C A L DW E L L 

Transforming  
vacant spaces into 
beautiful parks. 

41



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

HOW

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 R
A

N
G

E
LY

Transforming  
vacant spaces into 
beautiful parks. 

HOW

During the pandemic, with a huge push for outdoor dining, 
Rangely realized that there was not a great area on Main 
Street for residents to enjoy. From there, the idea for the 
pocket park was born. The Town’s horticulturist (who does 
landscape design) and engineer, who serve on the Main 
Street Committee, worked with other committee members 
and the Public Works Department to design an area that 
would be beautiful and functional for residents.  

NEXT42



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 R
A

N
G

E
LY

NEXT

QUOTE “The Colorado Main Street team at DOLA was 
amazing in assisting with this project. While the 
park was funded by a CDOT Revitalizing Main 
Street grant, I feel  that [Main Street] answered 
and assisted with the entire project, even down 
to deciding to install a bike repair station. If you 
have questions, they are always there to assist.       

— Jeannie Caldwell, Main Street Manager 

Transforming vacant spaces 
into beautiful parks. 

43



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 R
A

N
G

E
LY

TIP:We installed a bike repair station where you 
can put air in your tire or use the repair tools. 
The benches align with the aesthetics we have 
implemented throughout town. With grass 
and mature trees, it is a great place to take a 
break, have lunch, or visit with a friend. There 
is beautiful landscaping near the front of the 
park. It brings a lot of beauty to our community 
and is always bustling with locals.

Transforming vacant spaces 
into beautiful parks. 

NEXT

TIP

44



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

WHAT

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 G
R

A
N

B
Y

TOW N  O F  GRA N BY
M A I N  ST R E E T  M A N AGE R :  L AU R E N  H U BE R

Designing for the future 
and placemaking. 

WHAT

The Town of Granby is currently refreshing their design guidelines and 
developing its comprehensive plan. “We are excited,” Lauren Huber, 
Executive Director of Destination Granby and the Main Street manager, says. 
“There’s a lot of development coming into Granby, and we want to plan and 
not let the town lose its character.” Creating these design guidelines, as well 
as doing some façade improvements with funds from the Main Street Open 
for Business (MSOB) grant, will help Granby by: 

 • Increase connectivity between destination areas and downtown

 • Calm traffic through downtown, which sits along Highway 40 

 • Make the downtown area safer and more pedestrian friendly

 • Ensure a cohesive design that maintains the aesthetic of the town

 • Bring in visitors and residents alike with a warm and welcoming atmosphere

NEXT45



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

HOW

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 G
R

A
N

B
Y

Designing for the future 
and placemaking. 

HOW

Colorado Main Street provided technical assistance as Granby 
developed a request for proposals to find a design consultant.  
Currently, the Town is in the discovery phase and public engagement 
process to learn more about what the community wants and how that  
can practically be achieved. But even while the new guidelines are still 
being developed, improvements are happening! Granby has 11 
businesses benefitting from the MSOB grant, including Bowerbird’s  
Den, Simple Coffee, and Drive by Pie (pictured). Façade improvements 
to existing businesses will ensure that they blend well with new 
developments to come.   

NEXT46



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 G
R

A
N

B
Y

NEXT

QUOTE “We are working to open up and brighten 
buildings, making it so you can see that 
businesses are open. It will not only improve 
the look of the building, but also the 
functionality of the building and make it a 
place where people want to spend time in  
a welcoming atmosphere.”        

— Lauren Huber, Destination Granby/Main Street Manager 

Designing for the future 
and placemaking. 

47



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

C
A

S
E

 S
T

U
D

Y
  |

 G
R

A
N

B
Y

TIP:“The local community are the ones living there, 
so ask them what is missing and what they’d 
like to see brought in.” Lauren says.
 • Host group walks with the community and look at a place that could be the 

home to something new. Ask people what they would like to see there. 

 • Practice looking at existing places in a new way. An empty space between 
buildings or an alleyway might be used to augment the amenities and 
provide a place to gather. 

 • Host a meeting with different groups in the town and show them visuals  
of areas to improve and have a brainstorming session.

 • Use online resources and invite people to add their ideas to maps from home.  

Designing for the future  
and placemaking. 

NEXT

TIP

48



SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

RESOURCE AND  
REFERENCE GUIDE 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

 G
U

ID
E

NEXT

PRESERVATION  
Collectively, the Main Street 
movement is the leading voice 
for preservation-based economic 
development and community 
revitalization across the country.

 • State Historical Fund  
(History Colorado) 

 • Revolving Loan Fund  
(Colorado Historical Foundation) 

 • State Preservation Tax Credits 

 • Federal Preservation Tax Credits

FACADE IMPROVEMENTS  
Façade appearance is a critical aspect of the 
overall aesthetic appeal and unique character of 
downtown, and studies show its economic benefits.

 • Main Street facade renovation resources

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE  

Colorado Main Street is also fortunate to have  
a full-time architect, Larry Lucas on staff to  
help our communities with all of their  
design-related questions. 

49

https://www.historycolorado.org/grants-incentives
https://www.cohf.org/preservation-loans/
https://www.historycolorado.org/preservation-tax-credits
https://www.nps.gov/tps/tax-incentives.htm
https://nmsc.connectedcommunity.org/blogs/hl-admin/2017/05/11/measuring-the-economic-impact-of-storefront-improvements
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1EWr9QWIDvMn1-KqmYMwa4VIe6f71FbWL
mailto:larry.lucas%40state.co.us?subject=


SPRING 2022  |   THE MAIN THING

RESOURCE AND  
REFERENCE GUIDE 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

 G
U

ID
E

STREETSCAPING AND POCKET PARKS  
While the buildings and the businesses that 
are in them are the heart of our downtowns, 
the streets and sidewalks are the arteries that 
bring people to them. 

 • Colorado Downtown Streets guide 

 • The Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) 
Revitalizing Main Streets (RMS) grants  

 • AARP Livable Communities 

 • “Pocket Parks Bring Life to Unused Spaces”  

 • Great Outdoors Colorado

PLACEMAKING AND PUBLIC ART  
Placemaking is a holistic approach to 
thinking about the public spaces at the 
heart of every community. 

 • Project for Public Spaces

 • Community Heart & Soul

 • American Planning Association

 • Colorado Creative Industries

BACK50

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-e25iz08Sry8JVX7aFGxy15_a-JoguGu/view?authsuer=0
https://www.codot.gov/programs/revitalizingmainstreets
https://www.aarp.org/livable-communities/tool-kits-resources/info-2020/rural-livability-workshop-report.html
https://www.ayresassociates.com/pocket-parks-bring-life-to-unused-spaces/
https://goco.org/programs-projects/our-grant-programs
https://www.pps.org/
https://www.communityheartandsoul.org/
https://web.archive.org/web/20191103232857/http://brinshore.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/Best-Practices-for-Creative-Placemaking-UL-March-April-2017-web.pdf
https://oedit.colorado.gov/colorado-creative-industries


51



52



ABOUT Club 20 
 
Club 20 is an organization of counties, communities, tribes, businesses, individuals and associations in 
Western Colorado.  The group is organized for the purpose of speaking with a single unified voice on issues 
of mutual concern.  Its activities include marketing and advertising, public education, promotion, meetings 
and events, and political action.  Club 20 is the “Voice of the Western Slope”.  
 
Founded in 1953 by Western Slope business leaders, Club 20 was originally organized for the purpose of 
getting rural roads paved.  At the time, the State of Colorado had been spending only 10 percent of its 
highway funds west of the Continental Divide, even though more than half the roads were there.  With each 
community lobbying for its own roads, small towns were simply drowning each other out.  It finally became 
clear that only by agreeing on a single priority list could all the counties be heard.  And the process worked.  
Within a few years, the State was spending 37 percent of its highway funds west of the divide, and by the 
end of the 1950s finally had paved most of the major highways on the West Slope. 
 
The organization continued to grow, incorporating in 1955, and began working on other issues of mutual 
concern to all the Western Slope communities.  Its activities included water, agriculture and natural 
resources, energy issues - uranium in the ‘50s, oil shale in the ‘70s - and more recently economic 
development, public lands, air service, tourism, energy, trails, recreation and telecommunications. 
 
A Board of Directors makes Club 20 policy, which includes voting membership for each of the 22 counties 
and Ute Indian tribes in western Colorado.  Each has an equal voice, their delegations elected by the 
members in each county or Tribe.  Management decisions are made by the Executive Committee, which is 
composed of the elected officers of the Board of Directors. 
 
The engines that drive Club 20 are the standing committees. Most Western Slope policy on key issues 
originates within one of the several committees, each with broad geographic representation. These 
committees include Agriculture, Business Affairs, Energy, Health Care, Education, Natural Resources, Public 
Lands, Telecommunications, Tourism, Transportation and Water.  Membership on these committees is open 
to all Club 20 members, and the groups recommend policy to the full Board of Directors.  A vote of the full 
Board is required for Club 20 to take a position on any issue. 
 
For more than five decades, this 
organization of all the communities of 
western Colorado has been providing a 
forum for the discussion of complex and 
controversial issues, and representing 
the interests of the western Slope at all 
levels of government. The group’s 
membership is broader and more 
diverse than at any time in history, and 
still growing each year. The Club 20 
leadership is convinced that, by working 
together to achieve a stronger voice, the 
Western Slope can help shape the 
destiny of Colorado and the West, and 
continue to serve as the “Voice of the 
Western Slope”. 

 
 

53



“Voice of the Western Slope since 1953” 
          A coalition of counties, communities, businesses & individuals 

(970) 242-3264  FAX (970) 245-8300 
       P.O. Box 4795  Grand Junction, CO  81502-4795 

         www.club20.org 
 

 

2022 Calendar of Events 

***Dates Subject to Change*** 

 

Joint Legislative Trip  
With Action 22 and Pro 15 

 
January 20-21 

Denver Metro Chamber of Commerce 
Reception at the Governor’s Mansion 

Denver, CO  
 
 

Winter Policy Committee Meetings   
Ute Water: 2190 H ¼ Road 

Grand Junction, CO 
 

Week 1 
February 17 & 18 

 
*All committees are expected to be held within these 

two days* 
 
 

Spring Conference 
Wildfire & Watershed Summit 

March 23-25 
Colorado Mesa University 

Grand Junction, CO  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you are unable to participate in our meetings in person, 
please contact staff to inquire about joining via Zoom.  

 

Summer Policy Committee Meetings 
 

Week 1 
La Plata County 

Fort Lewis College  
Durango, CO 
July 14 & 15 

 

Week 2 
Rio Blanco County 

Colorado Northwestern Community College 
Rangely, CO 
July 28 & 29 

   

Fall Conference & Candidate Debates 
Colorado Mesa University  

Grand Junction, CO  
September 9 & 10 

 
 

County Caucus Meetings 
September/October/November  

Archuleta  
Dolores  
Garfield 

Gunnison  
Jackson 
La Plata  
Moffat 

Montrose  
Pitkin 
Routt 

San Miguel 

54

http://www.club20.org/


Committee Structure 

 

Club 20 has ten standing committees: Agriculture, Business Affairs, Education & Workforce 

Development, Energy, Health Care, Public Lands & Natural Resources, Telecommunications, 

Tourism, Transportation and Water. 

 

Any Club 20 member can participate in one or more committees. The committees meet twice a 

year before the spring and fall membership meetings. Participation includes being able to 

propose and vote on proposed policy resolutions. Any resolution approved at the committee level 

will be recommended to and reviewed by the Board of Directors at either the spring meeting in 

April or the fall meeting in September before becoming Club 20 policy.  

 

Committees may meet more than twice per year, at the discretion of the Committee Chairman or 

the Chairman of the Board. Interim committees, subcommittees and task forces also are 

convened at the Committee or Board Chairmen’s discretion when an issue merits further 

discussion. If the interim committee, subcommittee or task force develops proposed policies, the 

proposals will proceed through the usual committee and Board approval processes. 

 

55



HEALTH
FAIR

SATURDAY, MAY 14th
7AM TO 11AM

TAKE ADVANCE OF OUR LOW COST BLOOD TESTS

RANGELY COMMUNITY

Be entered for a chance to win these prizes:
Grand Prizes:

Kodiak 30 Gun 
Fireproof Gun Safe

ALSO
G4 Free Hydration Pack

Solar Charger for Cell Phone or Other Small Electronics
Kettlebell Kettle ball set - includes 5, 10 & 15 lb. weights

Set of 2 Aihoye trekking poles

Location:  Rangely District Hospital

56



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 1 of 22 Pages

Associated Governments of Northwest Colorado

T22-0017  05/04/2022 17
Agenda for tomorrows call

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1006

Child Care Center 
Property Tax 
Exemption 

D. Roberts (D) | K. 
Van Winkle (R) / K. 
Donovan (D) | J. 
Smallwood (R) 

Under the state constitution, property that is used solely and 
exclusively for charitable purposes is exempt from property 
tax, unless otherwise provided by general law. Under this 
constitutional authority, there is currently an exemption for 
property used as an integral part of a child care center. 
Section 2 of the bill modifies this exemption by repealing the 
requirement that the property must be owned for strictly 
charitable purposes and not for private gain or corporate 
profit, and that the property must be irrevocably dedicated to 

CCI Priority Bill. FN: Cuts local 
government revenue by 
approximately $3 million per 
year. Childcare center must be 
nonprofit, buy landlord may be 
a profit-making entity. 

4/29/2022 
Introduced In 
Senate - Assigned 
to Finance

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
SENATE FINANCE 
COMMITTEE
1:30 PM Old Supreme 
Court
(8) in senate calendar.  

Monitor 

HB22-
1007

Assistance 
Landowner Wildfire 
Mitigation 

D. Valdez (D) | M. 
Lynch (R) / C. 
Simpson (R) | P. Lee 
(D) 

Wildfire Matters Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill 
establishes the wildfire mitigation resources and best 
practices grant program (grant program) within the Colorado 
state forest service (forest service). To be eligible to receive a 
grant, a recipient must be an agency of local government, a 
county, municipality, special district, a tribal agency or 
program, or a nonprofit organization. The forest service is 
tasked with reviewing grant applications. Grants must be 
awarded to applicants proposing to conduct outreach among 

FN: No tax impact, it is an 
income tax credit. Local 
jurisdictions can apply for 
grants for outreach. 

5/2/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
SENATE 
APPROPRIATIONS 
COMMITTEE
7:30 AM LSB-B
(4) in senate calendar.  

Monitor 

HB22-
1011

Wildfire Mitigation 
Incentives For Local 
Governments 

L. Cutter (D) | M. 
Snyder (D) / T. Story 
(D) | P. Lee (D) 

Wildfire Matters Review Committee. The bill establishes the 
wildfire mitigation incentives for local government grant 
program (grant program) in the Colorado state forest service 
(forest service). The grant program is established to provide 
state funding assistance in the form of grant awards to local 
governments to either match revenue raised by such 
governments from a dedicated revenue source that is or to 
expand existing programs administered by the local 
government on a long-term basis, which efforts are intended 

FN: NO Fiscal impact. Local 
government grants are for 
actual mitigation as opposed 
top 1007 

5/3/2022 
Introduced In 
Senate - Assigned 
to Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

57



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 2 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1012

Wildfire Mitigation 
And Recovery 

L. Cutter (D) | D. 
Valdez (D) / J. Ginal 
(D) | P. Lee (D) 

Wildfire Matters Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill 
creates the wildfire mitigation and recovery grant program 
(grant program) in the Colorado state forest service (forest 
service) to provide grants to help counties with forested areas 
prevent and recover from wildfire incidents and ensure that 
such efforts are undertaken in a manner that reduces the 
amount of carbon that enters the atmosphere. In expending 
grant money, a county, to the extent practicable, shall ensure 
that biomass that is removed from forests is recycled or 
disposed of in a manner that reduces the amount of carbon 
that enters the atmosphere.The forest service shall administer 
the grant program and, subject to available appropriations, 
award grants out of money annually appropriated to the 

Grants to local government for 
Recovery from fires, as well as 
mitigation. Applies to forested 
areas only. 

5/2/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

HB22-
1013

Microgrids For 
Community 
Resilience Grant 
Program 

R. Pelton (R) | M. 
Snyder (D) / D. Hisey 
(R) | F. Winter (D) 

The bill creates the microgrids for community resilience grant 
program (grant program) to be administered by the division 
of local government (division) in the department of local 
affairs (department), in collaboration with the Colorado 
resiliency office (office) in the division and the Colorado 
energy office . A cooperative electric association or a 
municipally owned utility (utility) may apply to the division for 
a grant award to finance the purchase of microgrid resources 
in eligible rural communities within the utility's service 

CREA pushing this. FN: $5KK 
generalfund $ for grants to 
cover 50% of costs of local 
distributed generation in rural 
areas 

5/3/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Transportation & 
Energy Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

HB22-
1024

Sales And Use Tax 
Exemption 
Municipal Public 
School 
Construction 

S. Bird (D) | D. Woog 
(R) / C. Hansen (D) | 
C. Kolker (D) 

Legislative Oversight Committee Concerning Tax Policy. Under 
current law, all sales of construction and building materials to 
contractors and subcontractors for use in the building, 
erection, alteration, or repair of structures, highways, roads, 
streets, and other public works are exempt from the sales and 
use tax levied by the state and certain local governments. 
Home rule cities continue to levy the tax on sales of 
construction and building materials within their jurisdiction. 
The bill extends the exemption to the sales and use tax levied 
by home rule cities on such materials for use in connection 
with the building, erection, alteration, or repair of a public 
school.For the 2022-23 state fiscal year, the bill appropriates 

Craig has asked that we send a 
letter to the governor asking 
him to beto this bill as it 
interferes with the power of 
Home Rule Cities. CML has 
alreadu sent such a letter. 

4/8/2022 Signed 
by the President 
of the Senate

NOT ON CALENDAR Deliberating
 

HB22-
1063

Jail Standards 
Commission 

J. Amabile (D) | A. 
Benavidez (D) / J. 
Coleman (D) | J. 
Cooke (R) 

The bill creates the legislative oversight committee 
(committee) concerning Colorado jail standards The bill 
creates and the Colorado jail standards commission 
(commission) in the department of public safety legislative 
branch . The committee consists of 6 members of the General 
Assembly and oversees the commission. The committee may 
introduce up to 3 pieces of legislation in the 2024 session 
based on recommendations from the commission. The 
commission creates recommends standards for the operation 

Amended to create a study to 
recommend legislation, issues 
taken up bill by bill. 

5/3/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Judiciary Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

58



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 3 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1067

Clarifiying Changes 
To Ensure Prompt 
Bond Hearings 

S. Woodrow (D) | S. 
Gonzales-Gutierrez 
(D) / P. Lee (D) | R. 
Rodriguez (D) 

Under current law, when a defendant is detained in jail on a 
municipal hold, the defendant must receive a hearing before 
the municipal court within 2 calendar days, excluding Sundays 
and federal holidays. Beginning January 1, 2023, the bill 
requires the hearing to be held within 48 hours after the 
defendant arrives at the jail municipal court receives notice 
that the defendant is being held solely on a municipal hold . 
The bill makes clarifying changes to the district attorney 
assistance for bond hearings grant program and repeals the 
district attorney assistance for bond hearings cash fund. The 

Amended to clarify 48H begins 
on receipt of notice, exempt 
when defendant cannot 
(health) or refuses to attend. 
allows AV attendance, and if AV 
is unavailable telephone. 

5/3/2022 House 
Considered Senate 
Amendments - 
Result was to Laid 
Over Daily

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
CONSIDERATION OF 
SENATE AMENDMENTS 
TO HOUSE BILLS
(5) in house calendar.  

Oppose 

HB22-
1072

Habitat Partnership 
Program 

P. Will (R) | D. 
Roberts (D) / K. 
Donovan (D) | C. 
Simpson (R) 

The habitat partnership program (program) assists the 
division of parks and wildlife (division) with reducing wildlife 
conflicts and meeting game management objectives. Section 
1 of the bill: Authorizes the director of the division (director) 
to independently appoint members of the habitat partnership 
council (council) that, in part, advises local habitat partnership 
committees (committees) that help implement program 
objectives; Expands the scope of the program to assist the 

Sen. Donovan and Sonnenberg 
concern about lack of oversight 
on new executive powers. May 
be minor change for some level 
of oversight. 

4/19/2022 Sent to 
the Governor

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

HB22-
1108

Include Vendor 
Name In Web-based 
Info System 

J. Rich (R) | J. 
Amabile (D) / R. 
Scott (R) 

The transparency online project is a free, searchable, web-
based system that provides public access to information 
about state and county revenue and expenditures. Currently, 
the web-based system does not always include the name of 
the vendor paid in connection with an expenditure. The bill 
requires the web-based system to include the name of the 
vendor paid in connection with each expenditure included in 
the system; except that the web-based system is not required 

Passed with strong vote. 4/14/2022 Sent to 
the Governor

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

HB22-
1109

On-demand Air 
Carrier Aircraft Sales 
Tax Exemption 

D. Woog (R) | S. Bird 
(D) / L. Liston (R) | C. 
Kolker (D) 

For 7 years beginning on January 1, 2023, the bill creates a 
sales and use tax exemption for the sale, storage, use, or 
consumption of an aircraft used or purchased for use in 
interstate or intrastate commerce by an on-demand air 
carrier. An on-demand air carrier is an entity authorized by 
the federal aviation administration to operate an aircraft to 
transport people or property in compliance with the 
administration's certification and operations requirements. 

3/3/2022 House 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

59



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 4 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1111

Insurance Coverage 
For Loss Declared 
Fire Disaster 

J. Amabile (D) / B. 
Rankin (R) | S. 
Fenberg (D) 

The bill establishes new coverage requirements for property 
and casualty homeowners insurance policies issued or 
renewed in Colorado, which requirements apply in the event 
of a loss of a residence as a result of a declared fire disaster. 
The bill also establishes new requirements for insurers who 
issue or renew property and casualty homeowners insurance 
policies, which requirements concern an insurer's handling of 
policy claims after such a loss occurs. (Note: Italicized words 
indicate new material added to the original summary; dashes 
through words indicate deletions from the original summary.) 
(Note: This summary applies to the reengrossed version of 
this bill as introduced in the second house.)  

Sailing through process so far. 4/22/2022 House 
Considered Senate 
Amendments - 
Result was to 
Concur - Repass

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

HB22-
1131

Reduce Justice-
involvement For 
Young Children 

S. Gonzales-
Gutierrez (D) | J. 
Bacon (D) / J. 
Gonzales (D) 

The bill changes the minimum age of a juvenile who is subject 
to the juvenile court's jurisdiction. Under current law, 
juveniles who are 10 years of age and older can be prosecuted 
in juvenile court. The bill removes juveniles who are 10, 11, 
and 12 years of age from the juvenile court's jurisdiction and 
increases the age for a prosecution in juvenile court to 13 
years of age; except in the case of a homicide, then the 
juvenile court's jurisdiction extends to juveniles who are 10, 

5/3/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Judiciary Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Oppose 

HB22-
1132

Regulation And 
Services For Wildfire 
Mitigation 

R. Holtorf (R) | T. 
Exum (D) / L. Liston 
(R) 

The bill requires that a fire department (defined to include a 
fire protection district as well as a county , or municipality , or 
metropolitan district or county improvement district that 
provides fire protection ) or other appropriate local entity be 
notified prior to a person conducting a controlled burn on 
private property. and prohibits a person from conducting a 
controlled burn under certain conditions. The bill also sets 
forth civil and criminal penalties for a person who does not 
provide notice prior to conducting a controlled burn or 
otherwise violates the bill's requirements The bill also defines 

Requres local jurisdictions to be 
notified of controlled burns. FN 
talks about processing notices 
and costs if fire district chooses 
to be present. 

5/3/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Transportation & 
Energy Refer 
Amended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

60



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 5 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1149

Advanced Industry 
Investment Tax 
Credit 

M. Lynch (R) | S. Bird 
(D) / B. Rankin (R) | 
C. Hansen (D) 

The bill extends the advanced industry investment tax credit 
for an additional 5 years year , increases the annual maximum 
amount of the tax credit from $750,000 to $4 million for the 
additional year, and increases the tax credit from 30% to 35% 
of a qualified investment in rural or economically distressed 
areas , and increases the total amount of the tax credit for 
each qualified investment from $50,000 to $100,000. Current 
law requires that individuals who are co-owners of a business 
may claim only their pro rata share of the tax credit. The bill 
now makes it so that the tax credit may be allocated among 
partners, shareholders, members, or other constituent 

4/28/2022 
Introduced In 
Senate - Assigned 
to Finance

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
SENATE FINANCE 
COMMITTEE
1:30 PM Old Supreme 
Court
(5) in senate calendar.  

Support 

HB22-
1166

Incentives Promote 
Colorado Timber 
Industry 

M. Lynch (R) | M. 
Weissman (D) / B. 
Rankin (R) | R. 
Woodward (R) 

Section 1 of the bill creates the timber industry workforce 
development program (internship program) in the Colorado 
state forest service (forest service) to provide incentives to 
timber businesses to hire interns through partial 
reimbursement of the costs to such businesses of hiring 
interns. Not later than January 1, 2023, the forest service is 
required to promulgate policies, procedures, and guidelines 
for administering the internship program. The bill specifies 
minimum components of the policies, procedures, and 
guidelines. Subject to available appropriations, the forest 
service may reimburse a qualified timber business an amount 

4/21/2022 House 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Deliberating
 

HB22-
1168

Public School 
Hunter Education 
Seventh Grade 
Course 

H. McKean (R) | K. 
Mullica (D) / R. 
Woodward (R) | J. 
Ginal (D) 

The bill allows local education providers, upon entering into 
an agreement with an individual or entity that offers hunter 
education courses certified by the division of parks and 
wildlife (division), to provide a hunter education course 
(course) to all seventh graders. The bill does not preclude a 
local education provider from offering hunter education 
courses as an elective course in any other grade. The course 
must satisfy the requirements of a hunter education course 
certified by the division; except that hands-on activities are 
not required. The course must be taught by a division-
certified instructor. A parent or legal guardian must provide 

We successfully amended to 
remove vocational schools from 
amended bill which would have 
limited actual weapons from 
being used for educational 
purposes. 

4/19/2022 Sent to 
the Governor

NOT ON CALENDAR Amend 

61



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 6 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1218

Resource Efficiency 
Buildings Electric 
Vehicles 

A. Valdez (D) / F. 
Winter (D) | K. Priola 
(R) 

Section 1 of the bill relocates existing statutes that require 
contractors to offer certain resource efficiency options when 
constructing certain buildings. Section 1 also requires 
commercial buildings and multifamily residences to include 
electric vehicle charging for at least 10% of the parking spaces 
as follows: If the building is 25,000 square feet or more or if 
the building is part of a project that is 40,000 square feet or 
more of floor space in more than one building, with a total of 
25 or more sets of living quarters or commercial units among 
all the buildings: 10% of the parking spaces used by the 
occupants of the building must be EV capable, which means 

5/4/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed with 
Amendments - 
Floor

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
THIRD READING OF 
BILLS - FINAL PASSAGE
(1) in senate calendar.  

Oppose 

HB22-
1223

Mobile Home 
Property Tax Sale 
Notice And 
Exemption 

C. Kipp (D) | J. Rich 
(R) / D. Coram (R) | 
J. Ginal (D) 

Section 1 of the bill creates a property tax exemption for 
mobile homes that have an assessed value of $2,000 or 
less.Section 2 eliminates the requirement that a county 
treasurer publish a notice in a newspaper of a sale of a mobile 
home due to property taxes owed if: A distraint warrant has 
been delivered to the owner of the mobile home or to his or 
her agent; and The county treasurer publishes a notice of the 
sale on the treasurer's website.(Note: This summary applies 
to this bill as introduced.)  

Passed committee 12-1. 
Amended to show actual value 
instead of assessed. CCI has 
concerns that exempting 
property creates non-
uniformity, and is therefore 
unconstitutional. 

3/1/2022 House 
Committee on 
Transportation & 
Local Government 
Refer Amended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

HB22-
1237

Changes To County 
Court Judges In 
Western Colorado 

D. Roberts (D) | P. 
Will (R) / B. Rankin 
(R) | K. Donovan (D) 

For county court organizational and administrative purposes, 
the bill changes the classifications of Garfield and Montezuma 
counties from Class C to Class B. For Garfield county, the bill 
amends the requirement that the associate county court 
judge in Rifle must maintain an official residence in Rifle and 
instead requires an official residence anywhere in Garfield 
county. For Rio Blanco county, the bill amends the 
requirement that the associate county court judge in Rangley 
must maintain an official residence in Rangley and instead 
requires an official residence anywhere in Rio Blanco county. 
(Note: This summary applies to the reengrossed version of 
this bill as introduced in the second house.)  

Bill proposed by Judicial system. 
They do NOT want to move 
court where they have two 
courthouses in a county, only 
want to allow residency from 
anywhere in county to draw a 
large pool of judges. 

4/19/2022 Sent to 
the Governor

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

62



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 7 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1244

Public Protections 
From Toxic Air 
Contaminants 

C. Kennedy (D) | S. 
Gonzales-Gutierrez 
(D) / J. Gonzales (D) 

The bill creates a new program to regulate a subset of air 
pollutants, referred to as "toxic air contaminants", which are 
defined as hazardous air pollutants, covered air toxics, and all 
other air pollutants that the air quality control commission 
(commission) designates by rule as a toxic air contaminant 
based on its adverse health effects. In implementing the 
program, the commission has the authority to adopt rules 
that are more stringent than the corresponding requirements 
of the federal "Clean Air Act". Beginning no later than January 
1, 2024, and every 5 years thereafter, the commission will 
review the list of existing toxic air contaminants and 
determine whether to add any additional toxic air 

Lengthy hearing that went until 
nearly 10 pm. Thank to 
Commissioner Villard for 
testifying. Richard testified on 
behalf of AGNC. Despite State 
Chamber's large coalition of 
opponents the bill passed on a 
party line vote. Opposition will 
continue as bill goes to 
Appropriations. 

5/3/2022 House 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Amended to 
House Committee 
of the Whole

Thursday, May 5 2022
GENERAL ORDERS - 
SECOND READING OF 
BILLS
(1) in house calendar.  

Oppose 

HB22-
1249

Electric Grid 
Resilience And 
Reliability Roadmap 

T. Bernett (D) | E. 
Hooton (D) / B. 
Rankin (R) | C. 
Hansen (D) 

The bill requires the Colorado energy office (office), in 
collaboration with the department of local affairs 
(department) and the Colorado resiliency office (resiliency 
office), to develop a grid resilience and reliability roadmap 
(roadmap) for improving the resilience and reliability of 
electric grids in the state (grid), which roadmap must include 
guidance on how microgrids may be used to harden the grid, 
improve grid resilience and reliability, and help serve 
communities' electricity needs independent of the grid deliver 
electricity where extending distribution infrastructure may 

This bill sets up stakeholder 
outreach meetings to plan and 
make recommendations for 
avoiding impacts from major 
utility outages during natural 
disasters. 

4/20/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR Oppose 

63



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 8 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1282

The Innovative 
Housing Incentive 
Program 

K. Mullica (D) | M. 
Lynch (R) / J. Bridges 
(D) | R. Woodward 
(R) 

The bill creates the innovative housing incentive program 
(program) within the office of economic development (office). 
A business located in Colorado that manufactures certain 
types of housing may apply for funding through the program. 
Funding may be awarded through grants for capital operating 
expenses and for incentives for units manufactured based on 
criteria established by the office, such as affordability, 
location where the unit is installed in the state, or meeting 
energy efficiency standards. Or, funding may be awarded 
through loans for the purpose of funding a manufacturing 
factory. The bill creates the innovative housing incentive 
program fund, requires a $40 million transfer to the fund from 
the affordable housing and home ownership cash fund, and 
continuously appropriates all money in the fund to the office 
to fund the program. (Note: Italicized words indicate new 
material added to the original summary; dashes through 
words indicate deletions from the original summary.) (Note: 
This summary applies to the reengrossed version of this bill as 
introduced in the second house.)  

The grants are limited to 20 
percent of operating 
expenditures and must be at 
least $50,000, except in coal 
transition communities and 
areas with limited economic 
opportunity and inadequate or 
poor quality housing, where 
grants must be at least $75,000. 
These grants may be used for 
operating expenses, which may 
include payroll, inventory, or 
materials. Grants may also be 
awarded as a performance-
based or per-unit incentive with 
OEDIT designing and 
implementing the rules for the 
incentive program. 

4/29/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

HB22-
1296

Residential Real 
Property 
Classification 

K. Mullica (D) | K. 
Van Winkle (R) / K. 
Priola (R) 

Under current law, facilities that provide long-term nursing, 
rest, and assisted living services, where residents reside for 
more than 30 days, are classified as residential properties. 
However, facilities that provide short-term convalescent care 
and rehabilitation services, where patrons visit the facility 
periodically or temporarily reside there for less than 30 days, 
are valued and classified according to the procedures for 
nonresidential property. The bill defines a nursing home as a 
licensed nursing care facility, including a nursing care facility 
that provides convalescent care and rehabilitation services. 
The bill specifies that land on which a nursing home is 
situated and any improvements affixed to that land for the 

The bill would classify 
rehabilitation care and nursing 
facilities as residential, 
regardless of the patient's 
length of stay. Nursing homes 
previously classified based on 
30 days or more residency. 

4/27/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR Deliberating
 

64



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 9 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1297

Daylight Saving 
Time Year Round 

C. Kipp (D) | P. 
Neville (R) / J. 
Bridges (D) | R. Scott 
(R) 

Currently, "United States Mountain Standard Time" (MST), 
defined in federal law as coordinated universal time minus 7 
hours, is the standard time within Colorado. During the period 
of daylight saving time (i.e., the second Sunday in March to 
the first Sunday in November) time is advanced one hour. 
Federal law allows a state to stay on standard time year 
round, but does not currently allow a state to adopt daylight 
saving time year round. The bill makes daylight saving time, 
defined as coordinated universal time minus 6 hours, the year-
round standard time within the state, but takes effect only if a 

Similar concept just passed US 
Senate. 

4/19/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

HB22-
1300

Local Enforcement 
To Prevent Human 
Trafficking 

T. Carver (R) | L. 
Daugherty (D) / R. 
Fields (D) | B. 
Gardner (R) 

The bill allows a board of county commissioners (board) to 
adopt a local resolution or ordinance to establish business 
licensure requirements to regulate massage facilities for the 
sole purpose of deterring illicit massage businesses and 
preventing human trafficking. The bill allows the board to 
charge an administrative licensure fee for a massage facility. 
The bill allows a board to adopt a resolution or ordinance to 
regulate and prohibit activities to prevent the operation of 
illicit massage businesses that engage in human trafficking-
related offenses. The bill allows municipalities to access 

4/22/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR

HB22-
1301

Controlled 
Environmental 
Agricultural Facility 
As Agricultural 
Property 

M. Soper (R) | D. 
Roberts (D) / K. 
Donovan (D) | C. 
Simpson (R) 

A "controlled environment agricultural facility" (CEA facility) is 
a nonresidential structure of not less than 1,000 square feet 
and related equipment and appurtenances that combines 
engineering, horticultural science, and computer 
management techniques to optimize hydroponic plant 
growing hydroponics, plant quality, and food production 
efficiency from the land's water for human or livestock 
consumption. The primary sole purpose of growing crops in a 
CEA facility is to obtain a monetary profit from the wholesale 
of plant-based food for human or animal livestock 
consumption. Commencing January 1, 2023, for property tax 
purposes: The definition of "agricultural and livestock 

Assessors oppose. Bill bases 
assessment on 25% NOI. Out 
for fiscal note. Ag supports, 
wants hemp added. SDA very 
concerned. 

5/3/2022 House 
Considered Senate 
Amendments - 
Result was to Laid 
Over Daily

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
CONSIDERATION OF 
SENATE AMENDMENTS 
TO HOUSE BILLS
(7) in house calendar.  

Oppose 

65



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 10 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1304

State Grants 
Investments Local 
Affordable Housing 

D. Roberts (D) | M. 
Bradfield (R) / J. 
Coleman (D) | J. 
Gonzales (D) 

The bill creates 2 state grant programs: The local investments 
in transformational affordable housing grant program 
(affordable housing grant program), administered by the 
division of housing (DOH) in the department of local affairs 
(department); and The infrastructure and strong communities 
grant program (strong communities grant program), 
administered by the division of local government (DLG) in the 
department. The affordable housing grant program provides 
grants to local governments and nonprofit organizations to 
enable such entities to make investments in their 
communities or regions of the state in transformational 
affordable housing and housing related matters. The strong 
communities grant program provides grants to eligible local 
governments to enable local governments to invest in infill 
infrastructure projects that support affordable housing. The 
strong communities grant program portion of the bill requires 
a multi-agency group, comprised of DLG, the state energy 
office, and the department of transportation, with the 
assistance of stakeholders, to develop a list of sustainable 
land use best practices that will accomplish the goals of the 
grant program and improve a local government's viability in 
being considered for a grant award. The bill requires both 
DOH and DLG to develop policies, procedures, and guidelines 
governing the administration of the respective grant 
programs. The bill specifies how grant funding is to be 
prioritized and eligible uses of grant money awarded under 
the grant programs. The bill creates 2 funds in the state 
treasury: The local investments in transformational affordable 
housing fund and the infrastructure and strong communities 
grant program fund. The bill specifies requirements pertaining 
to the administration of these funds. Both funds are initially 
supported with a transfer of a specified amount of money 
from different funds. The affordable housing grant program is 
initially funded by a transfer of $138 million from the 

5/3/2022 Senate 
Second Reading 
Laid Over Daily - 
No Amendments

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
SPECIAL ORDERS - 
SECOND READING OF 
BILLS (continued)
(5) in senate calendar.  

HB22-
1306

Broadband 
Deployment Board 
Grant Processes 

B. Titone (D) | M. 
Baisley (R) / J. 
Bridges (D) | K. 
Priola (R) 

Joint Technology Committee. In 2021, the general assembly 
authorized the broadband deployment board (board) to 
award money that the state received under the federal 
"American Rescue Plan Act of 2021" (act) for broadband 
deployment projects. The bill updates the requirements for 
awarding grant money pursuant to the act to require that 
applications comply with finalized federal regulations 

4/28/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

66



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 11 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1322

Water Quality 
Regulation 

A. Benavidez (D) | A. 
Valdez (D) 

The bill: Requires the water quality control commission 
(commission) to conduct outreach and gather input from 
disproportionately impacted communities regarding the 
commission's rule-making proceedings, licensing proceedings, 
and adjudicatory hearings ( section 1 of the bill); Requires the 
commission to utilize the criteria promulgated by rule by the 
commission in designating waters as use-protected ( section 2 
); and Creates a 5-year statute of limitations for bringing 
actions alleging violations of the "Colorado Water Quality 
Control Act" (act) or any rules or orders under the act ( 
section 3 ).(Note: This summary applies to this bill as 
introduced.)  

The bill results from a WQCC 
rulemaking in 2020 that some 
participants objected 1) did not 
adeuqately provide notice to 
affected parties, 2) the WQCC 
did not follow proper stream 
class. rules for protection,. The 
bill adds a 5 year statute of 
limitation for alleging violation 
of rules or orders. 

5/4/2022 House 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Amended to 
House Committee 
of the Whole

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(3) in house calendar.  

Monitor 

HB22-
1328

Modify Main Street 
Business Recovery 
Loan Program 

B. Titone (D) | B. 
McLachlan (D) / K. 
Donovan (D) 

The bill adjusts various requirements applicable to the 
"Colorado Loans for Increasing Main Street Business 
Economic Recovery Act" (program) that provides small 
business recovery loans to Colorado businesses, funded in 
part through the sale of premium tax credits. The bill: Extends 
the period through which the program can issue capital for 
the loan program through fiscal year 2023-24; Increases the 
amount of capital that can be issued in the last 3 fiscal years 
without increasing the total amount that can be issued for the 

5/4/2022 House 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Unamended 
to House 
Committee of the 
Whole

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(4) in house calendar.  

HB22-
1332

Office of Economic 
Development and 
International Trade 
American Rescue 
Plan Act Funds For 
Rural Colorado 

J. McCluskie (D) | L. 
Herod (D) / C. 
Hansen (D) | B. 
Rankin (R) 

Joint Budget Committee. Senate Bill 21-291 transferred $40 
million of "American Rescue Plan Act of 2021" (ARPA) money 
from the economic recovery and relief cash fund to the 
Colorado economic development fund and directed the office 
of economic development and international trade (OEDIT) to 
use $10 million of the money transferred to incentivize small 
businesses to locate in rural Colorado and for the location 
neutral employment incentive program. To ensure that the 
use of the $10 million complies with ARPA requirements, the 
bill instead directs OEDIT to use the money to support 

Amendment ties impacted 
communities eligible for grants 
to those impacted by COVID 
19. 

4/20/2022 Sent to 
the Governor

NOT ON CALENDAR

67



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 12 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1346

Electrician Plumber 
Licensing 
Apprentice Ratio 

M. Duran (D) | K. 
Mullica (D) / J. 
Danielson (D) 

Sections 2 and 6 1 and 5 of the bill authorize the director of 
the division of professions and occupations in the department 
of regulatory agencies to appoint or employ individuals who 
are licensed or, if not licensed, who demonstrate substantial 
work experience in the electrical, plumbing, or construction 
industry to: Conduct compliance checks to ensure compliance 
with licensing and supervisor-to-apprentice ratio 
requirements applicable to electricians and plumbers on 
projects throughout the state; and Prioritize for compliance 
checks projects that provide or will provide critical needs to 
state residents. The bill also: Specifies that only a homeowner 
performing work on the homeowner's home or a licensed 

5/2/2022 
Introduced In 
Senate - Assigned 
to Finance

Thursday, May 5 2022
SENATE FINANCE 
COMMITTEE
Upon Adjournment SCR 
357
(1) in senate calendar.  

Deliberating
 

HB22-
1350

Regional Talent 
Development 
Iniative Grant 
Program 

J. McCluskie (D) | J. 
Rich (R) / J. Bridges 
(D) | P. Lundeen (R) 

The bill establishes the regional talent development initiative 
grant program (grant program) in the office of economic 
development (office) to fund talent development initiatives 
across the state that meet regional labor market needs and 
specified grant program goals, including initiatives that meet 
workforce development needs in regions as they recover from 
the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
The office, a state agency designated by the office, or a third 
party with whom the office contracts is to serve as the 
administrator of the grant program (program administrator). 
The office is directed to appoint a steering committee of 
business, civic, education, and nonprofit professionals 
(steering committee) to support the program administrator, 
including: Developing a grant application process; Establishing 
grant application selection and prioritization criteria; and 
Advising the program administrator in appointing a selection 
committee to review grant applications and make grant 

Who identifies eligible regions 
for the program? The bill 
establishes prioritization 
requirements, including that 
grants must differentiate 
between seed funding for 
innovative programs and 
expansion funding for existing 
initiatives, and that additional 
consideration must be given for 
rural applicants and projects 
that meet critical state 
workforce needs 

5/4/2022 Senate 
Second Reading 
Special Order - 
Passed with 
Amendments - 
Committee

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
SENATE 
APPROPRIATIONS 
COMMITTEE
7:30 AM LSB-B
(13) in senate calendar. 
 

HB22-
1351

Temporarily Reduce 
Road User Charges 

D. Roberts (D) | B. 
McLachlan (D) / B. 
Pettersen (D) | N. 
Hinrichsen  

Senate Bill 21-260: Created phased-in road usage fees on 
gasoline and diesel that increase from 2 cents per gallon for 
state fiscal year (FY) 2022-23, when they are first imposed, to 
8 cents per gallon for FYs 2028-29 through 2031-32, and 
thereafter continue to increase to account for inflation; and 
Temporarily reduced the amount of the road safety 
surcharge, which is imposed annually when a motor vehicle is 
registered by $11.10 for registration periods beginning in 
2022 and $5.55 for registration periods beginning in 2023. 

5/2/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR Oppose 

68



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 13 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1356

Small Community-
based Nonprofit 
Grant Program 

L. Herod (D) | E. 
Hooton (D) / J. 
Gonzales (D) | B. 
Rankin (R) 

The bill creates the small community-based nonprofit 
infrastructure grant program (grant program) in the division 
of local government in the department of local affairs 
(division) to provide grants to certain small community-based 
nonprofit organizations that have been impacted or 
disproportionately impacted by the COVID-19 public health 
emergency for infrastructure and capacity building. The 
division is required to administer the grant program and to 

4/29/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

NOT ON CALENDAR

HB22-
1362

Building 
Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

T. Bernett (D) | A. 
Valdez (D) / C. 
Hansen (D) | F. 
Winter (D) 

The bill requires the Colorado energy office (office) to identify 
for adoption 3 sets of model code language: Model electric 
and solar ready code language; Model low energy and carbon 
code language; and Model green code language. The bill also 
requires the director of the office to appoint an energy code 
advisory board that will identify for adoption 2 sets of model 
code language: Model electric and solar ready code language; 
and Model low energy and carbon code language. On or 
before January 1, 2025, municipalities, counties, the office of 
the state architect, the division of housing, and the division of 
fire prevention and control shall adopt and enforce an energy 
code that achieves equivalent or better energy performance 
than the 2021 international energy conservation code and the 

This is a local control issue; our 
colleagues at CML oppose while 
CCI wants to amend. 

5/2/2022 
Introduced In 
Senate - Assigned 
to State, Veterans, 
& Military Affairs

Thursday, May 5 2022
SENATE STATE, 
VETERANS, & MILITARY 
AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Upon Adjournment Old 
Supreme Court
(6) in senate calendar.  

Oppose 

HB22-
1367

Updates To 
Employment 
Discrimination Laws 

S. Lontine (D) | M. 
Gray (D) / F. Winter 
(D) | B. Pettersen 
(D) 

The bill amends employment discrimination laws, commonly 
referred to as the "Colorado Anti-discrimination Act" or 
"CADA", as follows: With regard to the jurisdiction of the 
Colorado civil rights commission (commission) over 
discrimination complaints, instead of allowing the commission 
270 days to notice a hearing on the complaint and the ability 
to grant the parties an extension of up to an additional 180 
days, allows the commission a total of 450 days to notice a 
hearing on the complaint or lose jurisdiction over the 
complaint; Expands the definition of "employee" to include 
individuals in domestic service and specifies that it is not a 

5/3/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Judiciary Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR

69



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 14 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

HB22-
1370

Coverage 
Requirements For 
Health-care 
Products 

I. Jodeh (D) | E. 
Sirota (D) / F. Winter 
(D) | J. Buckner (D) 

Beginning in 2023, the bill requires each health insurance 
carrier (carrier) that offers an individual or small group health 
benefit plan in this state to offer at least 25% of its health 
benefit plans on the Colorado health benefit exchange 
(exchange) and at least 25% of its plans not on the exchange 
in each bronze, silver, gold, and platinum benefit level in each 
service area as copayment-only payment structures for all 
prescription drug cost tiers. Starting in 2024, a carrier or, if a 
carrier uses a pharmacy benefit manager (PBM) for claims 
processing services or other prescription drug or device 
services under a health benefit plan offered by the carrier, the 
PBM, or a representative of the carrier or the PBM, is 
prohibited from modifying or applying a modification to the 
current prescription drug formulary during the current plan 
year. The bill repeals and reenacts the current requirements 

5/2/2022 
Introduced In 
Senate - Assigned 
to State, Veterans, 
& Military Affairs

Thursday, May 5 2022
SENATE STATE, 
VETERANS, & MILITARY 
AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Upon Adjournment Old 
Supreme Court
(7) in senate calendar.  

Monitor 

HB22-
1394

Fund Just Transition 
Community And 
Worker Supports 

D. Esgar (D) | D. 
Roberts (D) / F. 
Winter (D) | K. 
Donovan (D) 

The bill transfers $15 million from the general fund, with $5 
million allocated to the just transition cash fund and $10 
million allocated to the coal transition workforce assistance 
program account, and directs the department of labor and 
employment, through the just transition office, to expend the 
money for specified coal community and worker supports. 
(Note: This summary applies to this bill as introduced.)  

5/4/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Amended to 
Senate Committee 
of the Whole

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
SENATE 
APPROPRIATIONS 
COMMITTEE
7:30 AM LSB-B
(18) in senate calendar. 
 

Support 

SB22-
001

Crime Prevention 
Through Safer 
Streets 

J. Buckner (D) | N. 
Hinrichsen / N. Ricks 
(D) | K. Tipper (D) 

The bill creates the crime prevention through safer streets 
grant program (grant program) in the department of public 
safety (DPS). The bill requires DPS to issue requests for 
proposals to local governmental agencies for the agencies to 
identify areas where crime is prevalent. After identifying such 
areas, local governmental agencies can apply to DPS for 
grants for improvements designed to create safer streets. The 
bill directs DPS to establish policies and procedures for the 
grant program. It also creates an advisory committee to 

5/2/2022 Senate 
Considered House 
Amendments - 
Result was to Laid 
Over Daily

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
CONSIDERATION OF 
HOUSE AMENDMENTS 
TO SENATE BILLS
(1) in senate calendar.  

Deliberating
 

SB22-
005

Law Enforcement 
Agency Peace 
Officer Services 

J. Bridges (D) | J. 
Cooke (R) / D. 
Roberts (D) | D. 
Woog (R) 

The bill requires the department of law (department) to 
implement a pilot grant program (grant program) to support a 
law enforcement agency to retain and recruit qualified and 
trained P.O.S.T.-certified peace officers. The department may 
award grants to help fund retention programs, recruitment 
purposes, and to provide financial resources for law 
enforcement academy training, academy trainees, and 

Grant Program 5/3/2022 House 
Committee on 
Judiciary Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

70



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 15 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
006

Sales Tax Assistance 
For Small Bus 

C. Kolker (D) | R. 
Rodriguez (D) / B. 
McLachlan (D) | M. 
Snyder (D) 

The bill permits a retailer with total taxable sales in the 
amount of $100,000 or less to retain 5.3% of the sales tax 
reported as compensation for the retailer's expenses incurred 
in collecting and remitting the tax (vendor fee) for sales made 
in 2023, rather than retaining a 4% vendor fee, which is what 
current law allows. The bill also clarifies that the calculation of 
the amount that is credited to the housing development grant 
fund is only based on the changes to the vendor fee from 
House Bill 19-1245, and not on any subsequent modifications, 
including those changes made in this bill.(Note: This summary 
applies to the reengrossed version of this bill as introduced in 
the second house.)  

Applies to state portion of tax 3/28/2022 House 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Unamended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

SB22-
007

Increase Wildfire 
Risk Mitigation 
Outreach Efforts 

T. Story (D) | P. Lee 
(D) / L. Cutter (D) | 
M. Snyder (D) 

Wildfire Matters Review Committee. The bill requires the 
Colorado state forest service (forest service) to convene a 
working group (working group) that includes the division of 
fire prevention and control in the department of public safety 
(DFPC) and the United States forest service (USFS), and that 
may include other local, state, or federal partners and entities 
engaged in wildfire risk mitigation in the wildland-urban 
interface (WUI). The working group shall consider how best to 
conduct enhanced wildfire awareness month outreach 
campaigns in 2023 and 2024, as well as other outreach efforts 

workgroup to consider wildfire 
outreach. May have costs only 
if ypou disseminate materials 
that are developed 

4/13/2022 House 
Committee on 
Energy & 
Environment 
Refer Unamended 
to Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

SB22-
029

Investment Water 
Speculation 

D. Coram (R) | K. 
Donovan (D) / K. 
McCormick (D) 

Water Resources Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill 
prohibits a purchaser of agricultural water rights that are 
represented by shares in a mutual ditch company from 
engaging in investment water speculation. Investment water 
speculation is the purchase of agricultural water rights that 
are represented by shares in a mutual ditch company in the 
state with the intent, at the time of purchase, to profit from 
an increase in the water's value in a subsequent transaction 
or by receiving payment from another person for nonuse of 

Scheduled committee hearing 
for 4/14 was cancelled; a new 
amendment is being worked on 
by sponsor. 

4/21/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Agriculture & 
Natural Resources 
Lay Over 
Amended

NOT ON CALENDAR Oppose 

71



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 16 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
051

Policies To Reduce 
Emissions From 
Built Environment 

C. Hansen (D) / E. 
Sirota (D) 

The bill specifies that air-source and ground-source heat 
pump systems are household furnishings exempt from the 
levy and collection of property tax. The bill exempts air-source 
and ground-source heat pump systems from the definition of 
"fixtures" for property tax purposes.For income tax years 
beginning on or after January 1, 2023, but before January 1, 
2033, any purchaser of an air-source heat pump system, 
ground-source heat pump system, water-source heat pump 
system, or variable refrigerant flow heat pump system (heat 
pump system) that installs a residential or commercial heat 
pump system or a residential or commercial heat pump water 
heater into real property in the state is allowed an income tax 
credit in an amount equal to 10% of the purchase price of the 
heat pump system or heat pump water heater. For income tax 
years beginning on or after January 1, 2023, but before 
January 1, 2033, any purchaser of an energy storage system 
that installs the energy storage system in a residential 

The bill has been heavily 
amended and the property 
portion removed. The bill now 
provides refundable income tax 
credit at 10% of purchase price 
for heat pumps and green 
building materials. Provides 
Sales and use tax exemptions 
for green furnaces and 
materials. Cuts sales and use tax 
revenue for local governments 
that use state collection system 
although they may expressly 
exempt by resolution or 
ordinance. 

5/2/2022 House 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Amended to 
Appropriations

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(6) in house calendar.  

Oppose 

SB22-
067

Safe Neighborhoods 
Grant Program 

P. Lundeen (R) / M. 
Bradfield (R) 

The bill creates in the peace officers standards and training 
board (P.O.S.T. board) the safe neighborhoods grant program 
(grant program) to provide grants to local law enforcement 
agencies to provide critical incident training to the agencies' 
peace officers. Grant recipients shall submit a report to the 
P.O.S.T. board of expenses and costs, and evidence of impacts 
as a result of the grant award. The P.O.S.T. board shall submit 
a report summarizing the information reported by grant 
recipients to the judiciary committees of the senate and 
house of representatives. For the 2022-23 state fiscal year, 
the general assembly shall appropriate $50 million to the 
P.O.S.T. board for grants. The P.O.S.T. board may use not 
more than 3% of the appropriation for costs to administer the 
grant program. (Note: This summary applies to this bill as 
introduced.)  

3/31/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Judiciary Refer 
Amended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

72



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 17 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
080

Wildland Fire 
Investigations 

K. Donovan (D) / D. 
Roberts (D) 

The bill establishes that conducting investigations of reporting 
on the investigation of wildland fires in the state to the 
wildfire matters review committee is a duty of the director of 
the division of fire prevention and control within the 
department of public safety and makes an appropriation 
creates the fire origin and cause investigation fund to fund 
such investigations. (Note: Italicized words indicate new 
material added to the original summary; dashes through 
words indicate deletions from the original summary.) (Note: 
This summary applies to the reengrossed version of this bill as 
introduced in the second house.)  

Division of Fire Prevention and 
Control (DFPC) in the 
Department of Public Safety 
(DPS) must investigate a portion 
of wildland fires for study of 
causes. This will relieve burden 
on local governments. to extent 
state takes over investigations 

5/3/2022 
Introduced In 
House - Assigned 
to State, Civic, 
Military, & 
Veterans Affairs

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
House State, Civic, 
Military, & Veterans 
Affairs
Upon Adjournment 
Room LSB-A
(6) in house calendar.  

SB22-
114

Fire Suppression 
Ponds Water Rights 

D. Hisey (R) | T. 
Story (D) / D. 
Roberts (D) | M. 
Catlin (R) 

Section 1 of the bill makes legislative findings and 
declarations. Section 2 allows a board of county 
commissioners (board), in consultation with its fire protection 
district, to apply to the state engineer for the designation of a 
pond as a fire suppression pond. The director of the division 
of fire prevention and control (director) in the department of 
public safety is required to promulgate rules to establish 
criteria for boards, in consultation with fire protection 
districts, to use to identify and evaluate potential fire 
suppression ponds.Before applying for the designation of a 

Bill continues to be amended to 
satisfy concerns. Now limited to 
surface of 6 acres/pond; 30 
ponds per county; criteria 
related to firefighting use. 

5/3/2022 House 
Second Reading 
Special Order - 
Passed with 
Amendments - 
Committee, Floor

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
THIRD READING OF 
BILLS - FINAL PASSAGE
(13) in house calendar.  

Monitor 

SB22-
118

Encourage 
Geothermal Energy 
Use 

R. Woodward (R) | 
N. Hinrichsen / R. 
Holtorf (R) | D. 
Valdez (D) 

The bill modifies the following statutory provisions that apply 
to solar energy so that they also apply to geothermal energy: 
which generally is using the heat of the earth to generate 
electricity or to heat or cool space or water: Section 1 of the 
bill requires the Colorado energy office (office) to develop 
basic consumer education and guidance about leased or 
purchased geothermal or, if available, leased installation in 
consultation with industries that offer these options to 
consumers of a system that uses geothermal energy for water 
heating or space heating or cooling in a single building or for 

5/4/2022 House 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Unamended 
to House 
Committee of the 
Whole

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(8) in house calendar.  

Deliberating
 

73



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 18 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
119

Conservation 
Easement Tax 
Credit 

C. Simpson (R) | F. 
Winter (D) 

The bill creates a new state income tax credit (new credit) for 
certain taxpayers who were denied state income tax credits 
for conservation easements donated between 2000 and 2013 
(original credit) if the federal internal revenue service allowed 
a federal income tax deduction for the same donation. A 
donation is eligible for the new credit only if the land subject 
to the donated conservation easement for which the original 
credits were disallowed was owned by the landowner, a 
family member of the landowner, or a trust or other legal 
entity controlled by the landowner or one or more members 

3/16/2022 Senate 
Committee on 
Finance Refer 
Amended to 
Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR Support 

SB22-
138

Reduce Greenhouse 
Gas Emissions In 
Colorado 

C. Hansen (D) | K. 
Priola (R) / A. Valdez 
(D) | K. McCormick 
(D) 

Section 1 of the bill requires that, beginning in 2023, each 
insurance company issued a certificate of authority to 
transact insurance business to prepare and file an annual 
report with the insurance commissioner providing a climate-
risk assessment for the insurance company's investment 
portfolio from the previous 12 months. The commissioner of 
insurance is required to post the reports on the division of 
insurance's website. Section 1 defines "climate-risk 
assessment" as a determination of the economic and business 
risks that climate change poses to an investment that reports 
more than $100 million on its annual schedule T filing with the 
National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) 
participate in and complete the NAIC's "Insurer Climate Risk 
Disclosure Survey" or successor survey or reporting 

Bill was significantly amended 
removing the prohibition on 
sale of small gas powered 
enginers in 2030; providing tax 
incentives to purchase battery 
powered lawn mowers and leaf 
blowers; expanding study of 
sequesstration opportunities 
for lands in addition to ag 
lands. 

4/28/2022 House 
Committee on 
Energy & 
Environment 
Refer Unamended 
to Finance

Thursday, May 5 2022
Finance
Upon Adjournment 
Room 0112
(4) in house calendar.  

Monitor 

SB22-
153

Internal Election 
Security Measures 

S. Fenberg (D) | K. 
Priola (R) / S. Lontine 
(D) 

The bill increases election security measures for the secretary 
of state's office, election officials, candidates for elected 
office, and voters. Current law authorizes the attorney 
general and the secretary of state (secretary) to enforce the 
provisions of the election code by injunctive action brought in 
the district court for the judicial district in which any violation 
occurs. Section 4 of the bill requires the district court and the 
supreme court, if applicable, to expedite scheduling and the 
issuance of any orders in connection with an enforcement 

4/28/2022 House 
Second Reading 
Laid Over Daily - 
No Amendments

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
GENERAL ORDERS - 
SECOND READING OF 
BILLS
(1) in house calendar.  

Oppose 

74



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 19 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
172

Colorado Rural 
Health-care 
Workforce Initiative 

F. Winter (D) | B. 
Rankin (R) / D. 
Roberts (D) | J. Rich 
(R) 

The bill establishes the Colorado rural health-care workforce 
initiative (initiative) to expand the number of health-care 
professionals practicing in Colorado's rural or frontier 
counties. As part of the initiative, an institution of higher 
education (institution) is authorized to establish and operate 
a health-care professionals rural track within any health-care 
professional education program offered by the institution. A 
rural track must set aside seats in its health-care professional 
education program for students who express an interest in 
studying and working in a rural or frontier county, offer 

We requested that sponsors 
amend to extend required 
length of service. Initial reaction 
was favorable, upon further 
consideration was denied. 

5/4/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed - No 
Amendments

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
THIRD READING OF 
BILLS - FINAL PASSAGE - 
CONSENT CALENDAR
(2) in senate calendar.  

Amend 

SB22-
185

Security For 
Colorado Seniors 

J. Danielson (D) | J. 
Buckner (D) / M. 
Lindsay | M. Young 
(D) 

The bill renames the area agency on aging grant program to 
the strategic investments in aging grant program (grant 
program). The grant program administers state assistance to 
finance projects across the state that are intended to assist 
and support older Coloradans. The bill extends the grant 
program indefinitely to continue the support of projects that 
promote the health, equity, well-being, and security of older 
Coloradans across the state.(Note: This summary applies to 
the reengrossed version of this bill as introduced in the 
second house.)  

5/3/2022 House 
Second Reading 
Special Order - 
Passed - No 
Amendments

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
THIRD READING OF 
BILLS - FINAL PASSAGE
(23) in house calendar.  

Deliberating
 

SB22-
193

Air Quality 
Improvement 
Investments 

S. Fenberg (D) | J. 
Gonzales (D) / A. 
Valdez (D) | M. 
Froelich (D) 

Industrial and manufacturing operations clean air grant 
program. Section 1 of the bill creates the industrial and 
manufacturing operations clean air grant program (clean air 
grant program) through which the Colorado energy office 
(office) awards grant money to private entities, local 
governments, tribal governments, and public-private 
partnerships for voluntary projects to reduce air pollutants 
from industrial and manufacturing operations. Voluntary 
projects eligible for grant money include: Energy efficiency 
projects; Renewable energy projects; Beneficial electrification 

This funds various programs to 
reduce air emissions. Governors 
air quality bill. Passed 
committee 4/5 with little or no 
opposition.. 

5/4/2022 House 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Amended to 
House Committee 
of the Whole

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(10) in house calendar.  

Monitor 

75



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 20 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
198

Orphaned Oil And 
Gas Wells 
Enterprise 

S. Fenberg (D) | R. 
Scott (R) / M. 
Weissman (D) | P. 
Will (R) 

The bill creates the orphaned wells mitigation enterprise 
(enterprise) in the department of natural resources for the 
purpose of: Plugging, reclaiming, and remediating orphaned 
wells located in the state for which no owner or operator can 
be found or for which the owner or operator is unwilling or 
unable to pay the costs of plugging and abandoning the well; 
Ensuring that the costs associated with the plugging, 
reclaiming, and remediating of orphaned wells are borne by 
operators in the form of mitigation fees; Determining the 
amounts of mitigation fees; and Imposing and collecting 
mitigation fees. On or before August 1, 2022; on or before 
April 30, 2023; and on or before April 30 each year thereafter, 

5/4/2022 House 
Committee on 
Appropriations 
Refer Unamended 
to House 
Committee of the 
Whole

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(12) in house calendar.  

Monitor 

SB22-
200

Rural Provider 
Stimulus Grant 
Program 

J. Ginal (D) | B. 
Rankin (R) / M. 
Soper (R) | J. 
McCluskie (D) 

The bill establishes the rural provider access and affordability 
stimulus grant program (grant program) in the Colorado 
department of health care policy and financing (state 
department). As part of the grant program, the state 
department may award grants for projects that modernize 
the affordability solutions and the information technology of 
health-care providers in rural communities (rural providers) 
and projects that expand access to health care in rural 
communities. The types of rural providers eligible for grants 
under the grant program are rural hospitals that have a lower 
net patient revenue or fund balance than other rural hospitals 
in the state, as determined by the medical services board 

5/3/2022 House 
Committee on 
Public & 
Behavioral Health 
& Human Services 
Refer Unamended 
to Appropriations

NOT ON CALENDAR

SB22-
206

Disaster 
Preparedness And 
Recovery Resources 

S. Fenberg (D) / J. 
Amabile (D) 

Section 2 creates the disaster resilience rebuilding program in 
the division of local government (division) in the department 
of local affairs. The disaster resilience rebuilding program's 
purpose is to provide loans and grants to homeowners, 
owners of residential rental property, businesses, 
governmental entities, and other organizations working to 
rebuild after a disaster emergency. The division may contract 
with a governmental entity, bank, credit union, community 
development financial institution (CDFI), or other entity to 
administer the disaster resilience rebuilding program. If the 
division contracts with an entity other than a governmental 
entity or CDFI, The division is required to engage in an open 
and competitive process to select the entity. The division or 

5/3/2022 
Introduced In 
House - Assigned 
to State, Civic, 
Military, & 
Veterans Affairs

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
House State, Civic, 
Military, & Veterans 
Affairs
Upon Adjournment 
Room LSB-A
(4) in house calendar.  

Monitor 

76



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 21 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
215

Infrastructure 
Investment And 
Jobs Act Cash Fund 

C. Hansen (D) | R. 
Zenzinger (D) / L. 
Herod (D) | J. 
McCluskie (D) 

Joint Budget Committee. The bill creates the "Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act" cash fund (fund) and requires the 
state treasurer to transfer $81.5 million to the fund. The 
money in the fund is continuously appropriated subject to 
annual appropriation by the general assembly to the office of 
the governor (office) and to departments, subject to approval 
by the governor to be used as the nonfederal match funding 
necessary for the state or a local government to be eligible to 
receive federal approval and federal funds for certain 
categories of infrastructure projects allowed under the 
federal "Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act". The office of 

4/27/2022 
Introduced In 
House - Assigned 
to Appropriations

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
State Library 
Appropriations
8:00 a.m. Room Old
(13) in house calendar.  

Support 

SB22-
225

Ambulance Service 
Sustainability And 
State Licensing 

R. Zenzinger (D) | L. 
Liston (R) / D. 
Roberts (D) | M. 
Baisley (R) 

Under current law, ambulance services are regulated at the 
local level. On and after July 1, 2024, the bill requires an 
ambulance service to obtain a state license from the 
department of public health and environment (department). 
In licensing ambulance services, the department is authorized 
to conduct inspections, investigate and hold hearings 
regarding alleged violations, and, for any violations found, 
take action against an ambulance service's license or 
application for an initial or renewed license, impose civil 

5/3/2022 
Introduced In 
House - Assigned 
to Finance

NOT ON CALENDAR Monitor 

SB22-
230

Collective 
Bargaining For 
Counties 

S. Fenberg (D) | D. 
Moreno (D) / D. 
Esgar (D) 

Beginning January 1, 2023, the bill grants the public 
employees of a county the right to: Organize, form, join, or 
assist an employee organization or refrain from doing so; 
Engage in collective bargaining; Engage in other concerted 
activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or other 
mutual aid or protection; Communicate with other county 
employees and with employee organization representatives 
and receive and distribute literature regarding employee 
organization issues; and Have an exclusive representative at 
formal discussions concerning a grievance, a personnel policy 

5/2/2022 
Introduced In 
House - Assigned 
to State, Civic, 
Military, & 
Veterans Affairs

Thursday, May 5 2022
House State, Civic, 
Military, & Veterans 
Affairs
Upon Adjournment 
Room LSB-A
(1) in house calendar.  

Oppose 

77



5/4/2022 1:58 PM
Page 22 of 22 Pages

Bill # Short Title Sponsors Bill Summary Comments Status Calendar Position

SB22-
233

TABOR Refund 
Mechanism For FY 
2021-22 Only 

N. Hinrichsen | R. 
Rodriguez (D) / T. 
Exum (D) | L. 
Daugherty (D) 

If the state exceeds its constitutional spending limit, then it is 
required by the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR) to refund 
the excess state revenues (TABOR refunds). There are 
currently 3 TABOR refund mechanisms: Reimbursement to 
counties for the senior homestead exemption, a temporary 
income tax rate reduction, and a sales tax refund. The bill 
establishes a temporary fourth TABOR refund mechanism for 
excess state revenues from all sources for state fiscal year 
2021-22. Under this mechanism, if the amount of excess state 
revenues exceeds the projected total amount of TABOR 
refunds issued as reimbursement to counties for the senior 
homestead exemption and, if applicable, through the 
temporary income tax rate reduction, then on or before 
September 30, 2022, the state treasurer department of 
revenue is required to issue refund checks to every qualified 

5/3/2022 
Introduced In 
House - Assigned 
to Finance

NOT ON CALENDAR Amend 

SB22-
238

2023 And 2024 
Property Tax 

C. Hansen (D) | B. 
Rankin (R) / M. 
Weissman (D) | P. 
Neville (R) 

For the 2023 property tax year: Section 1 of the bill reduces 
the valuation for assessment of nonresidential property, 
excluding agricultural and renewable energy production 
nonresidential property, from 29% of the actual value of the 
property to 27.9% of the actual value of the property; Section 
2 reduces the valuation for assessment of residential 
property, including multi-family residential property, to 
6.765% of the actual value of the property; and Sections 1 and 
3 reduce the actual value used for purposes of the valuation 
for assessment of commercial real property by $30,000 and of 
residential real property by $15,000, but in either case to no 
less than $1,000. For the 2024 property tax year: Section 1 
continues the valuation for assessment of real and personal 

5/4/2022 Senate 
Third Reading 
Passed with 
Amendments - 
Floor

Wednesday, May 4 
2022
THIRD READING OF 
BILLS - FINAL PASSAGE
(4) in senate calendar.  

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87


	8 Public Hearings.pdf
	0 Town of Rangely Cover 01-22-2019
	1 Agenda
	Agenda 1-22-2019
	5 Minutes
	Minutes 01-08-2019
	8 Public Hearings
	9 Committee
	10  Reports from Council
	11 Reports from  Supervisors
	12 Reports from Officers
	13 Old Business
	14 New Business
	15 Informational Items
	Crab Crack 2-9-19
	Networking Meeting 01 22 19
	Rowdy Worm

	9 Committee 10 Reports from RBC Commissioners 11 Reports from Council 12 Supervisors.pdf
	0 Town of Rangely Cover 01-22-2019
	1 Agenda
	Agenda 1-22-2019
	5 Minutes
	Minutes 01-08-2019
	8 Public Hearings
	9 Committee
	10  Reports from Council
	11 Reports from  Supervisors
	12 Reports from Officers
	13 Old Business
	14 New Business
	15 Informational Items
	Crab Crack 2-9-19
	Networking Meeting 01 22 19
	Rowdy Worm




